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DIRECTOR GENERAL’S FOREWORD 

Anyone who has heard me speak at events or functions over the past five years would 

have heard me enthusiastically espouse the benefits of arts and culture across our 

community.  There is much evidence to suggest that arts and culture improve our well-

being, help us feel connected to each other and encourage a vital and dynamic society. 

People working and participating in arts and cultural activities understand how important 

the arts are. Our challenge, for both the Government and the arts sector, is to encourage 

this appreciation and value by all West Australians. 

 

During the past year, the Department has been involved in many projects that clearly 

demonstrate the value of the arts to all members of our community. On 9 June 2005, the 

Minister for Culture and the Arts announced the launch of CentreStage – An architectural 

design competition for Western Australia's state-of-the-art performance venue.  

Submissions will be short-listed in August 2005.  The winning design will be selected by 

the end of the year.  

 

This venue will be the first drama theatre to be built in Perth by any government in the 

history of the State. It will create a new entrance to the cultural centre and will be a 

statement of our cultural and artistic identity, of how we value performing arts, and of the 

contribution they make to the well-being of our society.  This is indeed one of those few 

opportunities we get to be part of something that will contribute so much to the identity of 

Perth, the place where we live and work and the city that attracts so many visitors from 

across Australia and overseas and is a great example of the broader benefits arts and 

culture can deliver to Western Australia. 

 

In May 2005, the Minister announced a budget commitment of $776,000 over four years to 

boost children's literacy in the first three years of life as part of the Better Beginnings 

program. 

 

Better Beginnings is a program to encourage literacy amongst young children.  Six West 

Australian communities took place in the pilot in 2004-2005, with very successful 

outcomes.  The new funds will help approximately 25,000 babies born each year in 

Western Australia to get a head start on literacy and will encourage parents to be the 

child’s first and most important teacher.  Research has shown that the ability to read is one 

of the key features of success as an adult, regardless of socio-economic background.  
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The long-term impact of this initiative cannot be underestimated.  As well as directly 

impacting on the literacy levels of a generation of West Australians, the program will 

encourage strong familial and community relationships.  It is expected that these 

outcomes will empower tens of thousands of young people with skills and values that will 

help them become constructive members of our society. 

 

I am proud of the role the Department of Culture and the Arts has played in these, and the 

many other projects documented in this annual report.  It is evident through the projects 

and activities detailed in the annual report of the many ways in which arts and culture 

contributes to the Government’s goals of people and community, the economy, the 

environment and the regions. The more we can integrate arts and culture with other areas 

such as health, education and law and order, the more people will value the importance 

arts and culture has in creating a dynamic, creative and economically and socially viable 

society.   

 

The Department has an important role to play in directing this agenda.  Over the past 

twelve months, the Department has been undergoing a comprehensive strategic planning 

process, including a restructure.  In February 2005, I was proud to announce the 

appointment of three Executive Directors to the new directorates of Culture and Arts 

Development, Corporate Assets and Business Support and Portfolio Coordination.  The 

restructure has been implemented to, amongst other objectives, improve advice and 

services to the arts sector and community by providing greater synergy between arts 

policy, development and delivery and better integrate the functions of the Portfolio towards 

broader Government outcomes.  

 

The strategic planning has included a review of our objectives and outcomes and it is 

anticipated that these will be finalised for reporting in the next financial year. 

 

I would like to thank the staff of the Department of Culture and the Arts for their energy 

and commitment over the past twelve months, particularly during the times of change.  

The heads of the portfolio directorates and their staff have continued their excellent work.   

 

I would like to thank them and formally welcome Dr Dawn Casey as Director, Western 

Australian Museum and Margaret Allen as the State Librarian of Western Australia. 
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I would also like to thank the Minister for Culture and the Arts, the Honourable Sheila 

McHale MLA, for her leadership and vision in championing projects such as the new 

performing arts venue and the planning for the new museum. 

 

The past year has been a year of promising beginnings.  I look forward to consolidating 

our achievements and, in doing so, further integrate arts and culture into our community. 

 
Alastair Bryant 
Director General 

7 
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

To the Hon Sheila McHale MLA, Minister responsible for the Department of Culture 
and the Arts 

 

In accordance with Section 62 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, I am 

pleased to submit, for your information and presentation to Parliament, the annual report 

of the Department of Culture and the Arts for the year ending 30 June 2005. 

 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial 

Administration and Audit Act 1985. 

 
ALASTAIR BRYANT 
DIRECTOR GENERAL 

31 August 2005 
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CORPORATE IDENTITY 

The Department of Culture and the Arts (DCA) was formally established on 20 May 1997 

under Section 35 of the Public Sector Management Act.  The creation of the DCA was 

recommended by the Machinery of Government to make the public sector more efficient 

and effective in providing services to the people of Western Australia.  

The DCA brings together the Culture and the Arts portfolio with the other organisations 

being the: 

• Art Gallery of Western Australia (a statutory authority); 

• State Library of Western Australia (a statutory authority); 

• Western Australian Museum (a statutory authority); 

• Perth Theatre Trust; and 

• ScreenWest Incorporated. 

 

The Department also provides support to the Swan Bells Belltower, which is managed by 

a Foundation. 

 

STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS 

The Department has been undergoing a strategic planning process, resulting in the 

development of a new Departmental mission and redefined organisational structure to 

deliver it. 

 

The Department has been restructured into three directorates: culture and arts 

development; corporate assets and business support; and portfolio coordination, with a 

new position of Executive Director being appointed to each directorate in February 2005.  

 

The new structure was designed to: 

• provide a greater clarity of purpose for the Department and a capability to focus on 

the core business;  

• improve advice and services to the arts sector and community by providing greater 

synergy between arts policy, development and delivery;  

• enable more efficient coordination and delivery of shared services;  

• better integrate the functions of the portfolio towards broader Government 

outcomes; and  
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• better align the resources of the Department to enable it to achieve its strategic 

goals. 

 

As a result of strategic planning workshops with senior management and consultation with 

staff at all levels of the organisation, a new direction statement has been developed and 

will be distributed in late 2005.   

 

GOVERNMENT STRATEGIC GOALS 

The operations and outcomes of the Department contribute specifically to the Government 

strategic goal to enhance the quality of life and wellbeing of all people throughout Western 

Australia.  The operations report in this annual report documents the Department’s 

achievements towards all five of the Government’s strategic goals. 

 

Outcome 
All organisations within the Culture and Arts portfolio contribute towards an outcome of a 

community that is informed of, and has access to, a diverse range of innovative ideas, 

knowledge and cultural experiences.  

 

As part of the strategic planning process, the Department is working with the Department 

of Treasury and Finance to revise the outcomes and outputs to better represent the new 

direction of the Department and better align with the Government’s Strategic Planning 

Framework Better Planning: Better Services. It is intended that the new outcome and 

output statements will be reported in 2006/07.  The following outputs relate to 2004/05. 

 

Outputs 
The outputs for the organisations of the Culture and Arts Portfolio are listed in the budget 

papers for the Department of Culture and the Arts.  The budget papers show that the 

funding for these outputs is primarily provided by Parliament through the Department, 

although some organisations within the Portfolio also receive part of the appropriation 

directly.  All organisations of the Portfolio have the same outcome statement as outlined 

above. 

 

The listed outputs under the budget papers are: 

1. Art Gallery Services; 

2. Library and Information Services; 
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3. Museum Services; 

4. Arts Industry Support; 

5. Screen Production Industry Support; 

6. Venue Management Services; and 

7. Record Keeping and Archival Services. 

 
Notwithstanding the clustering of outputs under the Department in the budget papers, the 

Department is only responsible for producing outputs (4) and (7), the rest being the 

responsibility of the Art Gallery of Western Australia (1), State Library of Western Australia 

(2), Western Australian Museum (3), ScreenWest Inc. (5) and the Perth Theatre Trust (6).  

Each of these portfolio organisations separately report on their performance with respect 

to these outputs in their own annual report. 

 

THE FUNCTIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 

In 2004-05, the Department had four major functions, each with a number of strategies, to 

help it achieve its outcome.   

1. Leadership and advocacy – assisting the Minister with setting the strategic 

direction for culture and the arts in the State and promoting the value and benefit to 

the community. 

• capital planning and provision of arts facilities; 

• undertaking research, developing and implementing arts and culture policy and 

aligning the functions of the organisations in the Culture and the Arts Portfolio 

with Government priorities and outcomes and the arts and culture principles; 

and 

• setting up strategic partnerships to explore the potential for arts and culture in 

the community. 

2. Administering the State Records Act 2000.  

• advising government organisations on recordkeeping and assisting them with 

training their staff in recordkeeping; 

• advising government organisations on the preparation of and compliance with 

recordkeeping plans; 

• providing access to and information about unrestricted State archives in the 

State archives collection and facilities and services to enable their effective 

use; 
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• creating and maintaining a register of State archives; and 

• providing advice and assistance to the State Records Commission. 

 

3. Funding and development – supporting the development of the arts sector in 

Western Australia. 

• administration of an arts grants program for the provision of funding for arts 

projects, programs and the base funding for the operations of key arts 

organisations; 

• arts policy development, advocacy, publications and partnerships; and 

• business development support including the development, publication and 

implementation of good practice management guidelines and the conduct of 

operational, financial and artistic reviews. 

4. Resourcing and administrative support – to the organisations of the Culture and the 

Arts Portfolio in the delivery of their outputs and outcomes. 

• provision of shared corporate services to the organisations of the Culture and 

the Arts Portfolio, enabling them to access expert strategic advice and benefit 

from shared resourcing; 

• to act as the main contact point to and from the Minister, adding value to 

Ministerial communications and providing a main point of contact for the 

Minister through the Director General; 

• providing issues management and strategic communications advice and 

services; and 

• coordinating and implementing machinery of government reforms across the 

Culture and the Arts Portfolio and assisting all portfolio organisations with 

effective corporate governance. 
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STRUCTURE OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 

The preceding diagram shows the functional structure of the Culture and Arts Portfolio and 

the Department.  The Department coordinates, integrates and oversees the activities of the 

portfolio and acts as the main contact point to and from the Minister and for the central 

government agencies, including the Auditor General, Department of Premier and Cabinet 

and Department of Treasury and Finance.   

 

Office of the Director General 
The Director General is appointed by the Minister for Public Sector Management and is 

accountable to the Minister for Culture and the Arts for all outputs and outcomes of the 

Culture and Arts Portfolio.  The secretariat provides executive support to the Director 

General through the Executive Officer and manages the liaison between the Minister’s office 

and the Culture and Arts Portfolio.   

 

The Department of Culture and the Arts is organised into four directorates.  These are: 

Culture and Arts Development, Corporate Assets and Business Support, Portfolio 

Coordination and State Records Office.  Each directorate is outlined below. 

 

PROFILES OF DIRECTORATES 

Culture and Arts Development works with a range of stakeholders, and closely with the 

arts and cultural sector, to foster an environment for arts and culture to prosper through 

planning and the allocation of appropriate support. Its functions include policy development, 

portfolio wide cultural planning, research, arts and cultural sector development, grants 

programs, advocacy, communication and strategic arts and cultural programs.  It also works 

in partnership with the programming and policy arm of the Perth Theatre Trust. 

 

Portfolio Coordination is responsible for facilitating cooperative arrangements across the 

portfolio, including managing the business of the peak portfolio consultative groups, strategic 

planning, corporate affairs/issues management, organisational performance, cultural tourism, 

audit and risk management and special projects. 

 
Corporate Assets and Business Support is responsible for strategic corporate services – 

Human Resources, Information Services, Finance and Property Development and 

Management.  This directorate is responsible for strategic asset management and aspects of 
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the Perth Theatre Trust (BOCS Ticketing) including venue (contract) management, business 

planning and marketing. 

 
State Records Office (SRO) is responsible for managing, preserving and providing access 

to the State’s archives.  The SRO delivers best practice records management services to 

State and Local Government agencies, and provides the community with access to the 

State’s archives. 

 

PROFILES OF WORK AREAS 

Planning and Policy 
This area undertakes research and advocacy to promote the value of the arts, develops 

strategic partnerships across State Government agencies and carries out coordination work 

across the portfolio in relation to cultural and arts policy development, functional 

programming and international cultural relations. 

 

ArtsWA 
ArtsWA supports the development of the arts sector in Western Australia through the 

administration of arts funding, policy development, advocacy, research and information.  

 

Corporate Affairs 

Corporate Affairs provides strategic communication planning, counsel and advice across the 
Department. Corporate Affairs is responsible for issues management and communications: 
strategy and promoting the value of the arts.  

 

Organisational Performance 
Organisational Performance is responsible for the implementation of government reforms 

across the Culture and Arts Portfolio and the review and enhancement of corporate 

governance structures and systems.  

 

Audit and Risk Management 

Provides independent, objective assurance and consulting services, in respect of internal 
audit and risk management, with the aim of adding value and improving Culture and Arts 
Portfolio governance controls and operations. 
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Human Resources 
Human Resources provides strategic and operational advice and services to all stakeholders 

within the culture and arts portfolio. 

 

Financial Services 
This area provides financial services to the Department and portfolio organisations.  These 

services include the provision of expert financial advice, financial reporting, budgeting, 

development of financial policy and processing services. The unit also provides processing 

services to three external clients being Pilbara Development Commission, Industrial Relation 

Commission and the Swan Bells Foundation Incorporated. 

 

Venue Management and Ticketing Services  
This area manages and provides services to maximise the use of the venues managed by 

the Perth Theatre Trust.  It also ensures the provision of an efficient ticketing and information 

service to facilitate access to the Perth Theatre Trust's performing arts venues and provides 

targeted marketing information to performing arts companies.  

 
Property Development and Management (formerly Procurement and Facilities 
Management) 
The area provides procurement and facilities management services to the Department and 

portfolio organisations. This range of functions includes activities as diverse as the 

coordination of the architectural design competition for the new performing arts venue to 

contract management across the Portfolio.  The area also manages buildings including: the 

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts and Arts House in Northbridge; the King Street Arts 

Centre; the Kew Street facility; and the Old Customs House and Spare Parts Puppet Theatre 

in Fremantle. It is also responsible for the Law Chambers building tenancy. 

 

Information Services 
Information Services provides information management services to the Department and  

delivers information technology services across the portfolio.  
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ACHIEVEMENTS, CHALLENGES AND ISSUES 

• In October 2004, Cabinet endorsed funding of $42.261m for the new performing arts 
venue which will be built on the corner of Roe and William Streets in Northbridge. 

• CentreStage, an international competition for the design of the new performing arts 
venue, was announced in June 2005. 

• The Department worked with the Western Australian Museum to determine the 
requirements of a new museum for Perth.  This includes a vision for the proposed 
new museum, development of a common understanding of its functional and 
operational requirements and a preferred location.  This work will continue in 2005-
06.  

• The Department worked with the Western Australian Museum to assist with the 
relocation of the collections and staff from the Francis St building, Perth to improved 
facilities at the Collections and Research Centre, Welshpool.  

• A vision and a business case for a new State archives repository was developed and 
submitted to Government.   

• A utilisation study of buildings in the Cultural Centre has commenced and has 
identified opportunities to ensure effective space usage. 

• Two major arts development policies were launched after extensive industry 
consultation – Championing Creativity, an arts development policy framework for 
Western Australia 2004-07, and the Indigenous arts development policy, Creative 
Cultures, Supporting and Respecting Indigenous cultural expressions.   

• The review of ArtsWA’s devolved funding model saw a framework developed to 
enable a new process for planning, monitoring and assessing program delivery for 
ArtsWA and the organisations with devolved funding agreements.  Implementation of 
the framework will occur throughout 2006. 

• The new Designer Fashion Grants Program was established in 2004 to support the 
sustainable growth of the West Australian designer fashion industry.  Now in its 
second year of implementation, activities supported include research and 
development, marketing, skills development and showcasing West Australian 
designers at national and international trade fairs and fashion weeks. 

• A second ArtsWA regionally based arts development officer was established in the 
Gascoyne in October 2004 with the support of the Gascoyne Development 
Commission and the Shires of Carnarvon, Exmouth and Shark Bay. 

• Design for the co-location of the State Records Office and the National Archives of 
Australia search room facility, in the Alexander Library Building, was developed. 
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• A new automated archives management system, searchable on the SRO website via 
Archives Explored Online (AEON), was launched in November 2004. 

• The first round of recordkeeping plans of 309 State and Local Government 
organisations was approved by December 2004. 

• The Shared Services Office presents the biggest challenge to both Finance and 

Human Resources during 2005-06.  The Department is scheduled to roll-in to the 

SSO in July 2006.  A project steering committee will be set up in September 2005 to 

manage the roll-in of Finance and Human Resources into the SSO. 

• The Department’s key Portfolio facilities house the State’s treasures. These facilities 

require secure stable environments to accommodate, display and protect these 

irreplaceable objects, which represent Western Australia’s priceless heritage. The 

Department has an objective to increase maintenance funding to the Culture and Arts 

Portfolio, to address a maintenance backlog and sustain the new facilities earmarked 

in the 10-year capital program. If the current funding levels are not addressed, the 

maintenance backlog is predicted to rise significantly by the year 2007-08.  Proper 

facilities maintenance is intrinsically linked to the value, safety, enjoyment and 

appreciation the community derives from cultural and arts experiences. 
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

The Department of Culture and the Arts was established on 20 May 1997 under Section 35 

of the Public Sector Management Act 1994. 

 

The Department services the Minister for Culture and the Arts and forms part of the coalition 

of organisations in the Culture and Arts Portfolio.  The other members are the Art Gallery of 

Western Australia, Western Australian Museum, State Library of Western Australia, 

ScreenWest Inc and the Perth Theatre Trust.  The efforts of each organisation contribute to 

the effectiveness of the Department and will help the Department achieve its vision for the 

arts, in all its forms, to be universally recognised and respected as an essential element in 

creating our society. 

 

The Department of Culture and the Arts operates under the provisions of the Public Sector 

Management Act 1994.  In the performance of its functions, the Department complies with 

the following relevant written laws: 

Disability Services Act 1993 

Equal Opportunity Act 1984-1992 

Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 

Freedom of Information Act 1992 

Industrial Relations Act 1979 

Lotteries Commission Act 1990 

Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993 

Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1984 

Public Sector Management Act 1994 

State Records Act 2000 

State Supply Commission Act 1991 

Workers Compensation and Rehabilitation Amendment act (No.2) 1992 

 

The Minister for Culture and the Arts also administers the following Acts relating to the 

statutory authorities within the culture and arts portfolio: the Art Gallery Act 1959; the Perth 

Theatre Trust Act 1979-1981; The Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951; the State 

Records Act 2000 and the Museum Act 1969-1984. 

 

The Department complied with the requirements of the law, including the Financial 

Administration and Audit Act 1985, and exercised controls to provide reasonable assurance 
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that the receipt and expenditure of moneys, the acquisition and disposal of public property, 

and incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions.  There were 

no circumstances that render the particulars included in this statement misleading or 

inaccurate. 

 

The 2004-05 annual report incorporates a full financial report for the appropriation under 

Division 57 of the 2004-05 State Budget. 

 

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Code of Ethics 
Human Resources provides services to each of the following: 

 

• Department of Culture and the Arts; 

• The State Library of Western Australia; 

• Western Australian Museum; 

• Art Gallery of Western Australia; 

• ScreenWest; and 

• Perth Theatre Trust. 

 

In the administration of the Department of Culture and the Arts, I have complied with Public 

Sector Standards in Human Resource Management, the Public Sector Code of Ethics and 

the organisation’s Code of Conduct. 

 

There are sufficient internal controls and processes to provide a reasonable assurance of 

compliance with the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management for the 

recruitment, selection and appointment; transfer; secondment; performance management; 

redeployment; termination; discipline; temporary deployment (acting) and grievance 

resolution standards to satisfy me that the above statement is correct. 

 

In response to a 2004 internal audit report on compliance with public standards, the 

Department’s grievance resolution policy was updated and all Human Resources policies 

were made available on the Intranet. In addition, a performance management system and 

template to be applied across the portfolio is currently being developed, which will include an 

implementation and training program. 
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There were no breaches of Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management 

during 2004-05. 

 

The portfolio organisations – the Art Gallery of Western Australia, The Library Board of 

Western Australia, Perth Theatre Trust, ScreenWest and the Western Australian Museum – 

have reported their level of compliance in their 2004-2005 annual reports, in accordance with 

the Public Sector Management Act 1994 and their existing legislation or instruments. 

 

ALASTAIR BRYANT 

DIRECTOR GENERAL 

31 August 2005 
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OPERATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 

The Department of Culture and the Arts supports Better Planning: Better Services and 

contributes to the Government strategic goals, listed below, through its outcomes, outputs 

and strategies: 

• People and Communities; 

• The Economy; 

• The Environment; 

• The Regions; and 

• Governance. 

 

In particular, the Department’s budget papers are linked to the Government’s strategic goal 

to enhance the quality of life and wellbeing of all people throughout Western Australia. 

 

The operations, initiatives and projects of the Department during 2004-2005 are reported 

against the five Government strategic goals.  These initiatives are primarily the responsibility 

of Culture and Arts Development, Corporate Assets and Business Support, Portfolio 

Coordination and the State Records Office.  

 

GOAL 1:  PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES 

To enhance the quality of life and wellbeing of all people throughout Western Australia 

 

New Performing Arts Venue 
Cabinet endorsed funding of $42.261m for the New Performing Arts Venue in October 2004 

following an extensive site selection analysis.  The venue, which is to be constructed within 

the Perth Cultural Centre on the corner of Roe and William Streets in Northbridge, is due for 

completion in December 2008.  The new venue will include a main theatre with a seating 

capacity of approximately 575 and a smaller studio with a seating capacity of 200. 

 

A design for the Venue will be selected through an architectural competition. The 

competition, CentreStage, was announced in June 2005 and is a competitive two-stage 

process advertised internationally.  A six member expert jury chaired by the State 

Government Architect, Professor Geoffrey London, will judge the entries and announce the 

winner in late 2005. Jury members include eminent national and international architects and 

a representative from the performing arts sector:  
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• Professor Adèle Naudé Santos, Dean of Architecture and Urban Planning at the 

Massachusetts Institute of Technology;  

• Professor Leon Van Schaik, Innovation Professor at Royal Melbourne Institute of 

Technology;  

• Mr Gus Fergusson, Director of Fergusson Architects (Perth);  

• Mr Michael Lynch, Chief Executive of South Bank Centre (London); and  

• Mr Alastair Bryant, Director General of the Department of Culture and the Arts. 

 

The competition has two objectives, to create a engaging space for the audience and to 

create a functional and inspiring space for the performers. The venue will be at the cutting 

edge of architectural innovation and design excellence and reflect the value of performing 

arts to our society. State-of-the-art technical equipment in two performance spaces means 

this venue will advance WA's production standards and artistic innovation. 

 

Capital Works 
Cultural facilities such as libraries, theatres, galleries and museums are highly valued by 

residents, visitors and those who market Western Australia as a destination for business or 

pleasure.  

 

The appropriate planning, building and maintenance of cultural venues and infrastructure is 

essential.  The Department’s building portfolio consists of 28 high profile public venues with 

a replacement value of some $350 million.  There are many challenges associated with 

maintaining and developing this portfolio including: 

• complex requirements including sophisticated plant and equipment and a high 

standard of public amenities; 

• adaptive re-use of heritage buildings; 

• the need to keep pace with technical innovation; 

• the need to ensure broad access by the community, both physically and financially; 

and 

• requirement to operate seven days a week and for extended hours. 
 

The Department is responsible for the planning and development of the State Government’s 

capital works program for culture and arts in Western Australia.  Over the past five years, the 

Department has consulted broadly with the arts sector and general community, 

commissioning a number of studies and reports on capital works issues.  Significant work 
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has been done to determine how to best meet the physical requirements of the culture and 

arts sector. 

 

The allocation of global asset management funds of $14 million per annum in 2005-06, 

2006-2007 and 2007-2008 provides the Department with the capacity to move forward on a 

number projects.  Projects underway throughout 2004-05 were: 

• Arts House upgrade – improvements and access upgrades to the building and the 

Blue Room Theatre; 

• Contemporary Theatre Project – planning for a new performing arts venue to replace 

the Playhouse Theatre in 2008 began.  A feasibility report was completed and 

released for comment, and the Department successfully prepared a Business Case 

to Treasury for construction and operation of a new Performing Arts Venue in 

Northbridge; 

• Subiaco Arts Centre – improvements and upgrade to the Subiaco Theatre Centre for 

development of the Subiaco Arts Centre concept; 

• WASO relocation – the Department, City of Perth and the West Australian Symphony 

Orchestra worked in partnership to progress planning and site selection, with 

assistance from the Department of Housing and Works; 

• Broome Arts Centre – the Department continued to work with the Shire of Broome to 

define the scope of works for this project and to finalise site selection; 

• Bunbury History Museum – the Department continued to work with the City of 

Bunbury to define the scope of this project; and 

• Implementation of the Community Cultural and Arts Facilities Fund to provide funding 

support for the development of cultural and arts infrastructure throughout the State. 
 

The Department also provided executive support to the Ministerial Steering Committee, 

which was formed to provide recommendations on the future strategic and operational needs 

at the Museum. 

 

Upgrade of Facilities 
As part of the Performing Arts Venues Masterplan, the Department is in the process of 

redeveloping two theatre complexes within the Perth metropolitan area.  Both 

redevelopments will meet the needs of performing arts companies and audiences. 
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The Department has contributed $2.3 million towards the upgrade of the Subiaco Arts Centre 

in partnership with the City of Subiaco. The upgrade will include significant improvements to 

the rehearsal, theatre and studio areas and refurbished office space for the resident theatre 

company.  Audience comfort will be enhanced with new seating in the theatre, redesign and 

refurbishment of front-of-house space and provision of universal access. 

 

The $1 million renovations to the Blue Room Theatre and Arts House will also improve 

facilities for both artists and audiences.  Both the main performance space and the studio will 

be upgraded.  Front-of-house facilities will be upgraded to provide universal access and will 

be redesigned to increase audience amenity.  Whilst the renovations are extensive, the 

building’s heritage architecture and character will be retained.  Both projects are due for 

completion in early 2006. 

 

Triennial and Multi-year Funded Arts Organisations 
Funding of $10,991,806 was provided to 25 triennially base funded arts organisations and 

$934,286 to 21 multi-year program funded arts organisations during 2004-05. 

 

Triennial base funding is provided to Western Australia’s key arts organisations towards the 

operational and artistic costs of delivering an agreed level of services.  Multi-year program 

funding is provided to arts and cultural organisations through the relevant peer assessment 

panel towards the costs of delivering a program of artistic and cultural services and/or 

activities.  The following table shows the activity and participation for triennial and multi-year 

funded organisations in 2004 calendar year  

 
Activity 

No. of events 
Metropolitan 

No. of events 
Regional 

No. of events 
international  
or interstate 

 
Attendances 

Performances 2,286 351 10 712,588

Exhibitions 219 58 13 353,056
Residencies, 
Workshops, Forums  4,481 1,851 6 140,777

Festivals 6 5 0 172,509
Publications* 263 91 122 Not applicable 
Creative 
Development** 306 87 0 Not applicable 
TOTAL  7561 2443 151 1,378,930 

 
Note: Information is based on annual budgets and schedules. 
*Publications include CDs, DVDs and other forms of electronic publishing of material. 
**Creative development includes activity such as the development of a manuscript, script, production 
prior to performance, exhibition or publication. 



  2004-2005 ANNUAL REPORT 

26 

Contemporary Music 
Funding for contemporary music provided through the Contemporary Music Panel totalled 

$754,049, with 79 organisations and individuals supported during 2004-05. 

 

The State Government’s $5 million commitment over four years to support the contemporary 

music sector continued to achieve outstanding results in its fourth year of the program 

including: 

• Increased international signings and releases from Perth bands such as: The Sleepy 

Jackson (US and UK), John Butler Trio (US), The Fuzz (Japan), The Chevelles 

(Spain, Brazil), Full Scale (US), Tucker B’s (US), Sodastream (US, UK, Japan, Spain, 

Germany), Last Years Hero (Japan); 

• John Butler Trio, Little Birdy, Gyroscope, End of Fashion, The Sleepy Jackson, 

Tucker B's, Sodastream and The Panda Band have increased their profile in the USA 

since showcasing at the prestigious South by SouthWest festival in Austin Texas; 

• John Butler Trio played live on the Letterman program in the USA; 

• Little Birdy received funding to assist with the production of their Big Big Love debut 

album with sales of nearly 55,000 in Australia and approx 3,000 in Japan; 

• Connie Kis Anderson visited Nashville in May 2005 to do further recording with Tom 

K. Pick as producer/engineer. Connie Kis Anderson has been invited to showcase at 

the Australian Festival in Nashville, USA in September 2005; 

• Red Jezebel supported Jebediah on their 10-year anniversary tour in June 2005. This 

tour generated interest in Red Jezebel from major record companies; and 

• The Western Australian Music Industry Association hosted its first DIY Global 

Revolution Music Conference in February 2005 as part of the WAMI Festival. 

 

Designer Fashion 
The new Designer Fashion Grants Program was established in 2004, to support the 

sustainable growth of the West Australian Designer Fashion Industry.  A total of $138,307 

was provided to 20 organisations and individuals during 2004-05. 

 

Now in its second year of implementation, activities supported include research and 

development, marketing, skills development and showcasing West Australian designers at 

national and international trade fairs and fashion weeks. 
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In 2005, funding was granted to designers to showcase their collections at:  

 

Mercedes Australian Fashion Week – Sydney, May 2005 

• Sevn – Craig Coetsee; 

• Joveeba – Alison Cotton; 

• Sauce Clothing – Liza Matthews; 

• Breathless and Selfh – Rebecca Paterson; and 

• Ericaamerica – Lucas Bowers, Erica Wardle, Tristram John 

 

Milan Fashion Week – October 2005 

• Ae’lkemi – Alvin Fernandes 

 

L’Oreal Melbourne Fashion Festival – March 2005 

• Sevn – Craig Coetsee; 

• Breathless – Rebecca Paterson 

• DD by Megan Salmon 

• SU Design – Sonia Audino and Silvana Cristillo 

• Ae’lkemi – Alvin Fernandes 

 

A grant of $20,000 enabled five West Australian fashion designers to contribute to a wool 

research program exploring innovations in wool design and manufacture. The new woollen 

designs will be presented at the 7th World Merino Conference in Perth in July 2006. 

 

Indigenous Arts 
Funding for Indigenous Arts provided through the Indigenous Arts Panel totalled $274,033, 

with 32 organisations and individuals supported during 2004-05. 

 

ArtsWA launched its Indigenous Arts Development Policy, Creative Cultures-Supporting and 

Respecting Indigenous Cultural Expression in October 2004 at the Ninji Ninji Festival in 

South Hedland. 

 

Four major Indigenous music initiatives of the Indigenous Contemporary Music Strategy 

were implemented during 2004-05.  The initiatives included an internship at Perth 

International Arts Festival, the skills development program at the Jamieson community in the 

Ngaanyatjarra Lands, a skills development program in remote Kimberley communities 
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delivered by Goolarri Media Enterprises and a consultancy to develop a business case for an 

Indigenous Music Business Unit. 

 

ArtsWA developed a partnership with Community Arts Network WA to establish an 

Indigenous Culture and Arts Planning Officer in Kellerberrin, with a focus on the Keela 

Dreaming Festival, to be recruited in 2006. 

 

ArtsWA provided advice and support for the inaugural national Indigenous dance forum, 

Creating Pathways, in partnership with Ausdance National and the Aboriginal and Torres 

Strait Islander Board of the Australia Council for the Arts.  This forum, to be held at the 

National Museum of Australia, is planned for October 2005 and six West Australian 

contemporary dance practitioners will join another 30 dancers from around Australia to 

determine priorities for professional development, promotion and other issues.  

 

Visual Arts and Crafts 
Funding for visual arts and crafts provided through the Arts Development Panel totalled 

$340,510, with 30 organisations and/or individuals supported during 2004-05. 

 

Tripartite funding contracts were finalised with the Australia Council for the Arts for the Perth 

Institute for Contemporary Arts and FORM: Contemporary Craft and Design, as part of the 

National Visual Arts and Crafts Strategy. 

 

ArtsWA implemented the Emerging Curators Program with participant internships at the 

Museum of Contemporary Arts in Sydney, Venice Biennale and the Museum of Modern Art 

and Guggenheim Museum in New York. 

 

A new partnership was finalised between the Association of Western Australian Art Galleries, 

Artsource and Fremantle Arts Centre for the delivery of a pilot WA Living Artists month to be 

held in October 2005. 

 

ArtsWA supported the inaugural Sculpture by the Sea, held on Cottesloe Beach in 2005, 

where 27 Western Australian sculptors showcased their work amongst national and 

international works. 
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Writing 
Funding for writing provided through the Arts Development Panel totalled $129,001, with 10 

organisations and individuals supported during 2004-05. 

 

Consultation took place with West Australian poets to develop a Poetry Strategy to support 

the development of West Australian poetry, with the strategy to be implemented in 2005-06. 

 

Performing Arts  
Funding for performing arts provided through the Arts Development Panel totalled $202,206 

for theatre with 11 organisations and individuals supported, $95,730 for dance with six 

projects and individuals supported and $145,895 for music with 12 organisations and 

individuals supported during 2004-05. 

 

Final consultation with the theatre sector was conducted to inform the development of a new 

Theatre Funding Strategy to be progressively implemented commencing in 2005-06.  The 

State Government confirmed funding of $1 million towards the initial stages of the Strategy.  

Western Australia was successful in its bid to attract the 2006 Australian National 

Playwrights’ Conference to Perth. 

 

ArtsWA contributed to the national Review of Australian Symphony and Pit Orchestras which 

delivered its Report with 20 recommendations in early 2005.  Negotiations are continuing 

with the Federal Government on a funding package to ensure the financial and artistic 

sustainability of Australia’s professional orchestras. 

 

Multi-arts 
Funding for multi-arts provided through the Arts Development Panel totalled $118,541, with 

seven organisations and individuals supported during 2004-05. 

 

Residencies 
Funding delivered through the “Short Term Artist in Residence” program totalled $51,965, 

provided to nine regional and metropolitan communities. 

 

Artflight 
Funding of $192,989 was provided to 110 individuals through the Artflight travel program. 

This program is designed to assist West Australian artists and arts workers to attend events 
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or undertake activities of strategic significance to the development and promotion of their 

arts practice or profession. 

 

Indigenous Policy and Action Plan 
In August 2004, the Department released Cultural Commitments: Indigenous Policy 

Statement and Action Plan.  Planning and Policy led the development of the Statement and 

Action Plan with input from all of the organisations within the Culture and the Arts Portfolio 

and in consultation with Indigenous peoples.  Cultural Commitments outlines tangible targets 

and will underpin the Portfolio's future relationships with Indigenous peoples.  It will impact 

on each organisation’s research activities, public programs, planning and decision-making 

processes, interpretation of Indigenous culture, protocols and employment practices.   

 

Creative Connections: An Arts in Education Partnership Framework 2004 – 2007 
In January 2005, the Ministers for Education and Training and Culture and the Arts jointly 

launched Creative Connections: An Arts In Education Partnership Framework 2005 - 2007.  

Consultation for Creative Connections commenced in 2002 and built on the success of the 

ArtsEdge program, a strategic partnership arrangement between the two departments since 

1998.  

 

The Government’s vision for the arts in education is: 

• for broad public policy and community recognition of the importance of the arts in 

developing the unique intellectual and personal capacities of all young people in 

preparation for life and work in an increasingly challenging and rapidly changing 

world; and 

• that all young people will have access to high quality arts and cultural experiences 

throughout their schooling. 

 

Creative Connections aims to support and enhance existing successful activities in the arts 

in education, identify gaps in provision and initiate projects to promote access to a diverse 

range of high quality arts and cultural experiences in Government schools from kindergarten 

to year 12. The Framework outlines six key objectives, with a range of associated strategies 

and actions.  The Department is currently working with Department of Education and 

Training and other key stakeholders in the arts, education and community sectors to 

implement the Creative Connections framework. 
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ArtsEdge 
ArtsEdge is a strategic alliance between the Department of Culture and the Arts and the 

Department of Education and Training.  This strategic alliance links ArtsEdge to established 

communication networks of artists, arts and cultural organisations, teachers, schools, 

professional arts educators associations, the Curriculum Council and tertiary institutions. 

ArtsEdge seeks to assist schools to deliver cultural and arts education that is engaging, 

accessible, excellent, applicable and economic.   

 

ArtsEdge coordinated professional learning activities in the following areas during 2004-05: 

• forums, information sessions and workshops for the culture and arts sector; 

• Artists in Schools training for artists and educators; 

• arts skills workshops for teachers and schools; 

• curriculum based workshops for the education sector; 

• strategy for teacher professional development linked to the Contemporary Music 

Pack; and 

• Artists In Schools: The ArtsEdge Guide For Artists And Teachers was drafted and will 

be launched in November 2005. 

 

During 2004-05 ArtsEdge has provided the following communication services to meet the 

needs of artists, arts organisations and educators: 

• ArtsEdge Calendar of Arts Events, ArtsEdge Guide and Online Calendar; 

• ArtsEdge website (http://www.artsedge.dca.wa.gov.au); 

• ArtsEdge Yahoo! group  and ArtsEdge e-newsletter; 

• development of an extensive database of arts and education contacts; and 

• establishment of networking groups such as the ArtsEdge District Education Officers 

network, the University Education faculty network and the Education and Marketing 

Officers network.   

 

ArtsEdge in collaboration with AWESOME ARTS AUSTRALIA Ltd (AWESOME) presented 

ARTs MART 04 in November 2004 as a part of the 7th Symposium of the Asian Pacific 

Producers, Presenters, and Promoters Network for Young Audiences (APPN). ARTs MART 

aimed to provide the local arts industry with the opportunity to showcase works to a local and 

international audience.  It involved over 40 key arts and cultural organisations and attracted 

224 teachers to venues in the Perth Cultural Centre. 

 

http://www.artsedge.dca.wa.gov.au/
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Cultural Tourism Strategy 
The strategic partnership between the Department and Tourism Western Australian 

continued in 2004-05 with a Departmental officer seconded to Tourism WA..  The aim of the 

partnership is to better integrate the arts, culture and tourism industries. 

 
Since the release in February 2004 of Journey Further: An Arts and Cultural Tourism 

Strategy for Western Australia 2004-2008, the Cultural Tourism Coordinator has worked to 

implement the strategy.  Achievements, initiatives and progress in 2004-05 include:   

 

• monitoring and implementation of the Tourism WA Memorandum of Understanding 

(MOU) with the Perth International Arts Festival. This MOU articulates how both 

organisations are committed to a cooperative approach to developing and marketing 

selected festival programmed events that can be defined as tourism product; 

• ensuring images of WA’s cultural attractions are utilised in appropriate Tourism WA 

marketing publications when possible, eg EventsCorp, See it. Do it. campaign; 

• encouraging visiting journalists and famils staff to incorporate cultural experiences 

and attractions in itineraries; 

• working with Tourism WA’s Consumer Marketing to identify stories and content for 

monthly consumer e-newsletter. These newsletters are themed and targeted to 

specific national and international markets. The inaugural edition of the WA Travel 

Western Australia in November 2004 had a culture and arts theme promoting seven 

WA cultural products; 

• through the Cultural Ministers’ Council Statistics Working Group (CMC SWG), 

commissioning and releasing Economic Impact of Cultural Tourists in Australia and 

Cultural Tourism in Regions of Australia. Both these reports are available on the 

CMC SWG web site at http://www.dcita.gov.au/swg/statsinfo.html; 

• Tourism WA entered into a marketing partnership arrangement with the West 

Australian Symphony Orchestra (WASO) to market WASO product and leverage 

additional financial support from industry partners; 

• Tourism WA commissioning Ian Grandage to write a uniquely West Australian piece 

of music titled The Left Edge, which was performed by WASO.  This music has been 

used in marketing campaigns; 

• Tourism WA providing $4000 in funding to support a documentary on the inaugural 

Sculpture by the Sea exhibition in Cottesloe in 2005. This has screened on Qantas 

inflight entertainment, ABC, Channel 31 and Ovation; 

http://www.dcita.gov.au/swg/statsinfo.html
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• increasing the listing of arts and cultural events on the See it. Do it. 2004 and 2005 

Calendar of events;  

• encouraging more arts and cultural organisations to enter the Western Australian 

Tourism Awards.  In 2004, the Western Australian Tourism Award for Heritage & 

Cultural Tourism was won by the Western Australian Maritime Museum, Fremantle 

and the Tourism Retailing award was won by the Art Gallery of Western Australia; 

• working with the Memento awards and Tourism WA to establish a new category of 

award for 2005, Indigenous Memento of Western Australia. These awards recognise 

and reward high quality, locally designed and made tourism mementos. As part of 

this agreement, Memento provided three regional and two metropolitan product 

development workshops in WA in 2005, with one presented at the 2005 Australian 

Indigenous Tourism Conference (AITC) hosted by the Western Australian Indigenous 

Tourism Operators Committee (WAITOC) in June 2005; 

• working with the City of Perth, Transperth and Experience Perth to produce an Arts 

and Culture Map for convention delegates and independent visitors highlighting arts 

and cultural attractions of the Perth environs. This was released in June 2005 to 

coincide with the Australian Tourism Exchange (ATE) being held in Perth for the first 

time in the event’s history; and 

• maximising the opportunity presented by the ATE held in Perth 18-24 June 2005 to 

showcase and integrate art and cultural product and providers into tourism networks 

and channels.  This included the Department providing funding to provide a display of 

Indigenous art at both ATE and the AITC.  

 

Education Arts Partnership Initiative Grant 
The Department, in partnership with the Department of Education and Training (DET) and 

the University of Western Australia (UWA), participated in a research proposal funded 

through the Australia Council's Education and the Arts Partnership Initiative (EAPI).  The 

exploratory study commenced in March 2003 and investigated how arts education programs 

establish the foundations for long-term motivation and engagement with overall learning 

experiences.  The project sought to contribute to evidence documenting how the arts 

connect with those students who are more difficult to reach. 

 

The Department managed the development, budget, production, presentation and promotion 

of the project in consultation with the Australia Council and in association with UWA and 

DET.  UWA coordinated the research component and the writing of the report. 
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A report on this project was finalised in November 2004 and key findings are being 

integrated into an Australia Council document that summaries the six EAPI projects 

undertaken across Australia.  The Australia Council’s Education and the Arts Research 

Overview will be published in September 2005. 

 

Museum Policy Reference Group 
The Department, in association with Museums Australia WA, is investigating issues related 

to the development of the museum sector in Western Australia.  The focus is on independent 

and small museums across the State and the work is linked to that of the National 

Collections Advisory Forum of the Cultural Ministers’ Council. 

A Museum Policy Reference Group was established in 2003, chaired by Mr Peter Watson 

MLA.  The Reference Group met throughout 2003 and 2004 and continued to liaise in 2005, 

with members participating in a round table on the significance of WA heritage collections in 

February 2005. A range of associated activities has informed the Group’s deliberations, 

including: 

• participation in national and West Australian State conferences presented by 

Museums Australia; 

• familiarisation visits to museums in Western Australia and interstate; 

• regional and metropolitan workshops on the ‘significance’ of local collections (in 

partnership with the Museum Assistance Program of the Western Australian 

Museum); 

• capturing the significance of the collections of many of the small museums, galleries, 

Indigenous cultural centres and keeping places throughout the State; and 

• research into education and training for people in museums, including presentations 

and discussion with Western Australia’s major training providers in museums training. 

 

A survey was conducted from May to July 2004 of more than 250 community museums, art 

galleries and Indigenous keeping places throughout Western Australia, providing for the first 

time, a comprehensive and representative body of information on the issues, concerns and 

needs of this sector.   

 

To address the diverse and particular circumstances of centres engaged in the collection 

and maintenance of Indigenous cultures, a series of case studies has been prepared in close 

consultation with Indigenous communities across the State.  These focus on Warmun in 
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Turkey Creek, Warringarri Aboriginal Arts in Kununurra, Warburton Tjurluru (Western Desert) 

the Yamaji Language Centre and the Pilbara Pirrmal in the West Pilbara.  

 

A report of the Museum Reference Group’s deliberations and findings is currently being 

finalised and will be available in late 2005. 

 

State Living Treasures 
The second State Living Treasures Awards were coordinated and awarded in 2004.  The 

Awards, which were first conferred in 1998, celebrate the diversity, talent and contribution of 

a specially selected group of artists who have chosen to make Western Australia their home, 

or who have made West Australian places, people and experiences central to their work.  

The Awards recognise the exceptional skills and ability of these individuals, honours the 

personal integrity that makes their presence so valuable to cultural life and acknowledges 

their vital contribution to a sense of community and identity. 

 

The 12 State Living Treasures Award recipients for 2004 were selected by a Reference 

Panel of respected West Australian artists and artsworkers.  The Minister for Culture and the 

Arts, the Hon Sheila McHale MLA, presented the Awards at a Government House reception 

in December 2004.  The recipients were Alan Alder, Dr Lucette Aldous, Janangoo Butcher 

Cherel, Jimmy Chi, Professor Jeffrey Howlett AM, Tom (T.A.G.) Hungerford AM, Doris 

Pilkington Garimara, Dr Carol Rudyard, Professor Roger Smalley, Leonard ‘Jack’ Williams, 

Richard Woldendorp and Fay Zwicky.   

 

A limited edition commemorative book was released in June 2005 to document the life and 

work of the 2004 State Living Treasures Award recipients. The book features specially 

commissioned portrait photography and has been widely distributed, including to all public 

libraries in Western Australia.  The book will help to ensure that present and future 

generations of West Australians will be able to learn about our cultural heritage and continue 

to be enriched and inspired by the creative legacies of these exceptional people. 

 

Arts and Culture Research Monitor 
The Arts and Culture Research Monitor is an annual survey that has been conducted for the 

past four years to canvas a range of attendance and purchasing patterns, opinions and 

attitudes to arts and culture throughout Western Australia.  The data is valuable in that it 

enables the Department to determine community support for arts and culture and it also 
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assists the Department and ArtsWA with audit measurement requirements for annual 

reporting. 

 

Patterson Market Research conducted the survey in March 2005.  The research sample 

comprised 400 participants, which is considered a statistically significant sample (+-5%).  

There were 300 participants from metropolitan areas and 100 from regional Western 

Australia.  A minimum response rate of 50% was required for the survey to comply with the 

auditing standards. 

 

The survey represents an innovative partnership across portfolio organisations, creating an 

omnibus type survey to establish key baseline data.  Questions have been developed over 

the last four surveys, in consultation with the portfolio organisations, to mirror similar studies 

at a national level.  All data sets are compatible with the Australian Bureau of Statistics and 

Cultural Ministers’ Council Statistics Working Group data collection.  The report is available 

on the Department's website at http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ACMsurvey.asp.  

 

Cultural Advocacy 
In December 2004, the Department, in partnership with the Institute of Advanced Studies, 

University of Western Australia, organised the Art and Wellbeing Forum as part of the 

Department’s ongoing cultural advocacy seminars to promote the value of the arts.  The 

ability of arts practice to elicit dramatic outcomes in the area of individual and community 

wellbeing is now the focus of significant national and international research, examining the 

social and economic impact of the arts for individuals and communities. 

 

The Art and Wellbeing Forum highlighted the significant contributions of the arts to 

community wellbeing, by bringing together a diverse range of speakers from across Australia 

to explore the impact of the arts in the areas of community development, community and 

mental health, justice, crime prevention and prisoner rehabilitation programs and the 

disability arts sectors. Information relating to the forum can be found on the Department’s 

website at http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtandWellbeing.asp. 

 

Information and Resource Centre 
The Information and Resource Centre provides a library and reference service for staff of the 

Department, members of arts organisations and the wider arts communities.  The Centre 

retains a collection of books, videos, CD ROMs, reports, journals and newsletters pertaining 

to arts policy, cultural statistics, annual reports, other Federal and State arts organisations 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/
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and the West Australian arts and cultural sector.  An articles database facilitates access to 

articles related to cultural policy, arts economy and arts advocacy.  The Centre also compiles 

the Competition and Festivals Booklet, with contact details and awards for all of the major art 

prizes and festivals throughout Western Australia; and an Arts Conferences and Seminars 

listing.  Both of these resources are currently available at http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ 

resources.asp. 

 

Website 
The Department's website (http://www.dca.wa.gov.au) provides information about the 

business and activities of the Department and the portfolio organisations. The website 

provides information about the role and structure of the Department, its policies, projects, 

publications and initiatives being developed. Current vacancies are advertised on the 

website and people can apply for positions online. There were 1,212,883 successful hits to 

the Department's website during 2004-05. 

 

During the reporting year, the Department made some upgrades to the platform to resolve 

minor issues with uploading information. 

 

OBLIGATORY REPORTING 

 

Disability Services Plan 
The Department is committed to improving access and equity for all its customer groups and 

ensuring that people who have a disability or impairment are included and participate in 

shaping the range of services and objectives the Department delivers.   

 

To achieve this commitment, the Department has a Disability Services Plan encompassing 

the following work areas: ArtsWA, Organisational Performance, Property Development and 

Management, Finance, Information Services, Human Resources, Planning and Policy, 

Corporate Affairs and the State Records Office.   To develop, evaluate and implement its 

Plan, the Department established a Disability Services Planning Committee in 1998 (see 

report in Governance section). 

 

The Department continues to be proactive and adaptable in raising the awareness of 

potential, and actual, barriers experienced by Western Australians who have a disability or 
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impairment.  The inclusion and participation of people who have a disability in arts and 

cultural activities is a priority.  

 

During 2004-05, the Department continued to deliver services within the framework of the 

Disability Services Plan, achieving key outcomes. 

 

As part of the 2004-05 Capital Works Program, improvements in access to venues and 

facilities continued to be implemented at the Department’s cultural venues.  The Department 

finalised design and consultation for the Stage 3 access improvements for the Arts House 

venue, which incorporates lift access to the Blue Room Theatre.  Refurbishment to the 

Subiaco Arts Centre will also incorporate lift access to the theatre, rehearsal room and office 

spaces.  

 

The Disability Services Planning Committee continued its focus on improving the provision of 

information and services to people with disabilities, with the Department continuing to 

investigate new ways to develop multimedia displays that are more accessible in museums 

and galleries.   

 

The Department continued to support the inclusion and participation of people who have a 

disability or impairment in decision–making processes by conducting all community 

consultations at accessible venues and with the inclusion of two customer representatives on 

the Department’s Disability Services Planning Committee. 

 

Cultural Diversity and Language Services Outcomes 
The Department is committed to ensuring that clients can access services fairly and 

equitably and that service delivery is responsive to clients’ needs and is of a high quality. 

Staff are encouraged to use clear and concise language and to provide information in 

alternative formats on request as outlined in the Department’s Equity and Diversity Plan 

2003-2005. Information on translating and interpreting services is available for staff to utilise 

as required. 

 

Youth Outcomes 
Funding for the Young People and the Arts program provided through the Young People and 

the Arts Panel totalled $271,401, with 50 organisations and individuals supported during 

2004-05.  

 



  2004-2005 ANNUAL REPORT 

39 

Funding for the program increased by $60,000 in 2005.  The number of Young People and 

the Arts Fellowships ($10,000 each) increased from three to five in 2005.  

 

Additional funding was made available to organisations involved in the Young People and 

the Arts program who were able to make a strong case for much needed resources to 

support artistic programs and financial viability. STEPS Youth Dance Company received an 

additional $6,000 in stabilisation funding and WA Youth Theatre Company received an 

additional $15,000 to deliver its artistic program.  

 

Funding of $21,500 was provided towards the 2004 ARTsMART and APPN (Asia Pacific 

Producers, Promoters and Presenters Network) Symposium facilitated by AWESOME ARTS 

AUSTRALIA Ltd.  
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GOAL 2:  THE ECONOMY 

To develop a strong economy that delivers more jobs, more opportunities and greater wealth 

to Western Australians by creating the conditions required for investment and growth 

 

Arts Grants  
Funding made via ArtsWA during the financial year 2004-05 totalled $17,005,324, with 292 

organisations and groups receiving $15,885,551 and 201 individuals receiving $1,119,773. 

 

Grants payments awarded through the following funding programs and panels: 

 

Short Term Artist In Residence projects $51,965 

Music projects $145,895 

Dance projects $95,730 

Writing projects $129,001 

Visual Arts & Crafts projects $340,510 

Theatre projects $202,206 

Multi-Artform projects $118,541 

Young People & the Arts projects $271,401 

Indigenous Arts projects $274,033 

Creative Development Fellowships $155,000 

Artflight program $192,989 

Partnership Initiatives $755,445 

Major Organisations program funding $10,991,806 

Major Organisations other funding support $1,427,900  

Multi-Year Organisations program funding $934,286 

Contemporary Music program $724,049 

Biennale of Electronic Arts, Perth (BEAP) project grants $26,260  

Designer Fashion project and travel grants $168,307 

Total $17,005,324 

 

A full list of payments with further detail is available on the Department’s website at 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsWAGrants.asp. 

 

 

 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsWAGrants.asp
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The following table shows the kind of activities and associated attendances that occurred as 

a result of the Grants payments supported in the 2004 calendar year through funding 

programs and panels.   

 

Activity and participation for grant applications supported in the 2004 calendar year. 

Activity 
Number of 

events 
Metropolitan 

Number of 
events 

Regional 

Number of 
events 

International 
Attendances 

Performances 114 47 79 
 
11,643 
 

Exhibitions 11 3 9 
 
6,612 
 

Residences, 
workshops, 
forums etc 

247 91 8 1,353 

Festivals 3 1 0 
 
6,718 
 

New 
Publications* 8 1 0 Not Applicable

Creative 
development** 29 4 12 Not Applicable

 
Note: Information is based on 2004 acquittal figures. 
*Publications includes CDs, DVDs and other forms of electronic publishing of material. 

**Creative development includes activity such as the development of a manuscript, script, production 
prior to performance, exhibition or publication. 

 

Community Ethnic Media Grants 
The Department managed the Community and Ethnic Media (CEM) Grants Program with 

funds provided by the Government Media Office.  This was a one-off program to provide 

support for not-for-profit media organisations that cater specifically for community, 

Indigenous and ethnic audiences.  Its focus was to support the core business of these 

organisations by providing one-off funding for innovative programming and/or special 

infrastructure costs.  

 

In January 2005, the Department called for applications from not-for-profit community and 

ethnic media organisations.  The Community and Ethnic Media (CEM) Assessment Panel 

met on 19 March and 10 April 2005 to consider applications requesting a total of 

$1,726,200.95. The Assessment Panel included representation from community media, the 
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Office of Multicultural Interests and the Government Media Office. The panel recommended 

16 applicants for funding, totalling $480,000. 32% of applications were successful. 

 

Applicants were notified of the CEM outcomes in May 2005.  16 organisations received 

support for a range of projects.  These projects are outlined below: 

 

Applicant Funded Activity Amount
Access 31  Contribution towards the production of a local news 

program and the purchase of a microwave link system 
$60,593.00 

Arts Radio Ltd  Contribution towards the upgrade of the on-air studio at 
RTRFM  

$48,682.00 

Australian Asian 
Association of Western 
Australia Inc  

Purchase of a colour digital photocopier and software  $15,000.00 

Broome Aboriginal 
Media Association Inc  

Development of a series of radio and television 
segments depicting the Indigenous and non-Indigenous 
location names of unique sites in Broome and the 
Dampier Peninsula  

$43,240.00 

Community Television 
Perth Inc  

Contribution towards the purchase of urgent 
infrastructure and production of 13 half hour episodes 
of a magazine style television program ‘Kaleidoscope'  

$52,560.00 

Harvey Mainstreet Inc  Improvements to facilities at the Harvey Community 
Radio Station  

$46,890.00 

Juluwarlu Aboriginal 
Corporation  

Purchase of digital equipment  $25,010.00 

Jurien Bay Telecentre 
Inc  

Purchase of a high speed copy printer for the 
production of the local newspaper 

$5,200.00 

Mingenew Community 
Telecentre  

Purchase of a high speed copy printer for the 
production of the local newspaper 

$5,200.00 

Mullewa Telecentre Inc  Purchase of a high speed copy printer for the 
production of the local newspaper 

$5,200.00 

Multicultural Radio & TV 
Association of WA Inc  

Refurbishment of studio premises and contribution 
towards the development of a multicultural youth 
breakfast show  

$62,390.00 

Ngaanyatjarra Media 
(Aboriginal Corporation) 

Installation of television broadcast equipment into eight 
remote Indigenous communities  

$41,600.00 

Palmerston Association 
Inc  

In partnership with Albany Community Radio, 
development of a radio program aimed at Indigenous 
youth 

$31,506.00 

Wanneroo & Joondalup 
Regional Broadcasting 
Association  

Purchase and installation of a new antenna and 
transmitter  

$10,265.00 

Waringarri Media 
Aboriginal Corporation  

Weatherproofing of Kununurra studios  $21,236.00 

York FM  Sound proofing of production studio and urgent 
maintenance of studio premises  

$5,428.00 

Total  $480,000.00
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Community Culture and Arts Facilities Fund 
The new Community Cultural and Arts Facilities Fund (CCAFF) was implemented in 2004-05 

to strategically develop community arts and cultural facilities in the State.  The Fund aims to 

increase participation in, and access to, arts and culture by placing an emphasis on 

advancing artistic and cultural activity through purposeful and well-planned facilities.  

 

The $500,000 pilot round opened in April 2005 to local governments and the not-for-profit 

arts and culture sector to develop plans to embark on capital improvement, renovation or 

modification of existing facilities, or to construct a dedicated cultural facility. The pilot round 

will close on 7 July 2005. 

 

The Fund was developed in close consultation with the Western Australian Local 

Government Association and modelled on the Community Sporting and Recreation Facilities 

Fund managed by the Department of Sport and Recreation. 

 

This Fund is one way the Department is addressing capital works requirements across the 

culture and arts portfolio and the arts and culture sector.   

 

State Arts Sponsorship Scheme Awards 
The State Arts Sponsorship Scheme Awards recognise and encourage progressive 

partnership approaches to supporting arts and culture and promote the benefits business-

arts partnerships can offer to both the business and arts sectors, in an aim to encourage new 

partnership initiatives. Business and arts partners can nominate for Prestigious Partnership 

Awards and four levels of Partnership Endorsements. 

 

The 2004 State Arts Sponsorship Awards attracted a record number of 295 nominations, 

representing corporate support of arts and cultural projects in excess of $10 million. Culture 

and Arts Minister Sheila McHale presented the 11th annual awards on 6 October 2004 at His 

Majesty's Theatre. Five hundred and fifty guests attended the awards presentation event. 

 

Ten business-arts partnerships received Prestigious Partnership Awards in nine categories: 

 

• Best first time partnership (two winners) – Galafrey Wines for their partnership with 

the Fremantle Arts Centre; and Emirates Airline for its partnership with the West 

Australian Symphony Orchestra; 
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• Outstanding commitment to regional arts and culture – Woodside Energy for its 

partnership with the WA Youth Orchestra; 

• Most innovative partnership – Fremantle Ports for its partnership with the Foto-Freo 

International Photography Festival; 

• Outstanding long-term partnership – Wesfarmers Limited for its 15-year partnership 

with the Art Gallery of Western Australia; 

• Best collaboration – Blake Dawson Waldron, for its collaboration with the WA 

Symphony Orchestra and the Art Gallery of Western Australia; 

• Best media partnership – Geraldton Newspapers Limited for its partnership with the 

Western Australian Museum Geraldton; 

• Best sponsorship by a small or medium sized business – The Railway Hotel for its 

partnership with Lyons Productions; 

• Arts development – The City of Swan for its partnership with Artrage to develop and 

support the annual Urban Edge Festival; and 

• Community investment – The Chung Wah Association of WA for its collaboration with 

Barking Gecko Theatre Company. 

 

The Awards were co-hosted by WesTrac CAT (through Australian Capital Equity) and BHP 

Billiton Iron Ore with event partners WA Business News, Goundrey Fine Wine, and His 

Majesty’s Theatre and Ogden IFC. Alcoa, AngloGold Ashanti Australia, Burswood 

International Resort Casino, Rio Tinto WA Future Fund and Wesfarmers Arts were corporate 

package partners. 

 

Creative Industries 
Throughout 2004, representatives from the Department participated in a Taskforce 

commissioned by the Premier to prepare recommendations to Government on strategies to 

support the development of the creative industries sector in Western Australia. The 

Department continues to work with the Department of Industry and Resources, the City of 

Perth, the Department of Premier and Cabinet and other relevant organisations to further 

research and develop this sector. A number of associated meetings were held in the 

reporting period. 

 

Indigenous Intellectual Property Toolkit 
The Department, on behalf of the Cultural Ministers’ Council, is engaging a consultant to 

develop a national Indigenous Intellectual Property Toolkit as a practical and effective way of 
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increasing awareness and promoting good practice in managing Indigenous intellectual 

property.  The work is to be conducted within the framework of current Australian Intellectual 

Property Law. 

 

The Department is currently in the process of finalising the contract with the successful 

tenderer.  The contract period is for 12 months, and will include developing and piloting the 

Toolkit. 

 

OBLIGATORY REPORTING 

Interests of Senior Officers 
In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 903(3)(x) and Guidelines, in respect of particulars 

of any interest in any existing or proposed contract of senior officers; senior officers have 

either declared their interests in writing or have confirmed that they have no interest in any 

contracts with the Department of Culture and the Arts. 

 

GOAL 3:  THE ENVIRONMENT 

To ensure that Western Australia has an environment in which resources are managed, 

developed and used sustainably, biological diversity is preserved and habitats protected 

 

Percent for Art Scheme 
The Percent for Art Scheme is a partnership between the Department of Culture and the Arts 

and the Department of Housing and Works. The allocation of a percentage for art 

component, up to one percent, is encouraged in all State Government capital works projects.  

The Percent for Art Scheme improves the quality of our built environment and enhances the 

distinctiveness and special features of our many communities.   

 

In 2004-05, the Department continued to work with the Department of Housing and Works to 

advocate, develop, implement and deliver the Percent for Art Scheme.  A number of new 

Percent for Art Scheme projects were completed or commenced, developing new 

opportunities for West Australian artists and expanding the scheme and its benefits for the 

built environment throughout the State.   

 

The Department continued the implementation of the recommendations from the review of 

the Scheme, Integrating Views, which was completed in October 2003. This included the 



  2004-2005 ANNUAL REPORT 

46 

establishment in 2004-05 of an electronic database that enables cross-referencing of images 

and project information for over 200 completed Percent for Art Scheme projects. 

 

Year of the Built Environment 
The Government’s endorsement of the Year of the Built Environment in 2004 has focused 

attention on the built environment and facilitated a closer working relationship between a 

range of government and private sector stakeholders with an interest in the heritage and 

contemporary built environment.  In the latter part of 2004, the Department participated in the 

Year of the Built Environment Steering Committee to develop a Built Environment Policy.  

The Department has made a major contribution to this whole of Government initiative.   

 

Sound Attenuation 
Following on from the recommendations of the Contemporary Music Ministerial Taskforce 

Report (2002), an across government Noise Abatement Working Group was convened with 

representatives from the Department of Planning and Infrastructure, the Department of 

Environment, the Department of Local Government and Regional Development and the 

Department of Racing, Gaming and Liquor. 

 

The recommendations from this work led to the development of a Cabinet Submission, 

endorsed in December 2004, aimed at securing the support across government for 

measures to address sound attenuation issues and their impact on the West Australian 

contemporary music industry. 

 

These measures plan to address the balance between noise abatement issues and 
concerns of residents, whilst ensuring live performance venues continue to operate in inner 
city areas, suburban Perth and regional centres.  Consultation has been undertaken with the 
City of Perth, the East Perth Redevelopment Authority, representatives of the Western 
Australian Music Industry Association and the Western Australian Local Government 
Association, which also facilitated a meeting with key Local Government representatives. 

As a result, in 2005 a number of programs will be developed to: 

• support sound attenuation needs for live contemporary music venues; 

• ensure residential and mixed use planning processes can exist alongside a 
contemporary music venues; and  

• work towards a pre-event planning framework for larger outdoor music events.  

These measures will assist in the creation of a vibrant urban environment for all. 
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OBLIGATORY REPORTING 

Waste Paper Recycling 
The Department continues to recycle waste paper used in its activities.  All staff are 

encouraged to recycle paper. 

 

Energy Smart Government Policy 
The Department supports the Energy Smart Government Policy and will focus on achieving 

the objectives through implementation of energy reduction and energy efficiency initiatives 

that create savings in greenhouse gas emissions and also contribute to ongoing savings in 

organisation energy operating budgets. The Department endorsed an Energy Policy in 

January 2005, formalising the commitment to reducing energy use and practicing energy 

efficiency throughout all our premises, plant and equipment.  The Department has a cross-

Portfolio energy committee which meets monthly and is chaired by the Energy Executive.   
 

Energy Smart Government 
program 

Baseline
Data 

2003-2004
Actuals 

2004- 2005 
Actuals 

Variation
% 

Energy Consumption (GJ) 83,238 98,443 100,936 21.3% 

Energy Cost ($) 2,073,423 2,214,764 2,450,245 18.2% 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

(tonnes of CO2) 16,032 17,335 

 

18,449 15.0% 

 
As the above table demonstrates, energy consumption across the portfolio has increased by 

21 per cent over the 2001-02 baseline. This increase can be attributed to the opening of the 

new Maritime Museum at Victoria Quay, in 2003-04, which accounted for more than one-fifth 

of all energy consumed by portfolio organisations but was not included in baseline figures 

because it was commissioned shortly after the baseline was established.  

 

In 2004-05 there was a further increase when the Kew St Collections and Research Centre 

for the WA Museum was established. Although more energy is consumed as a result of Kew 

St, for the first time the collections are now housed in environmentally controlled conditions 

to stabilise and preserve the collection for future generations. Further substantial energy 

impacts are expected in 2005-06, the first full year on site. If Victoria Quay and Kew St are 

excluded, the balance of the DCA portolio achieved a reduction of 0.5% during the reporting 

period (target 1%) and an 8.3% reduction from the baseline figures (target 8%). 
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In March 2005 an external energy auditor was appointed to undertake energy audits of all 

DCA portfolio sites. 

 

GOAL 4:  THE REGIONS 

To ensure that regional Western Australia is strong and vibrant 

 

Parliamentary Inquiry into Regional Arts 
In 2003 and 2004, the Western Australian Parliament’s Community Development and Justice 

Standing Committee (CDJSC) conducted an Inquiry into the economic, cultural and social 

impact of the arts in regional Western Australia.  The CDJSC report, entitled Impact of the 

Arts in Regional Western Australia, was tabled before the Legislative Assembly on 28 

October 2004.  

  

The report advocates the benefits of arts and cultural development to the regions and 

presents 28 findings and ten recommendations that have implications for a number of 

different Government departments and arts organisations. 

 

In January 2005, the Department invited 18 government agencies and non-government 

organisations deemed to be relevant to the report and its findings to submit comment for 

consideration in the preparation of the Government’s response to Parliament.  Thirteen 

organisations provided feedback, which was compiled into a report and forwarded by the 

Minister for Culture and the Arts to the CDJSC. 

 

Regional Development 
A total of $799,934 was provided to individual artists and organisations based in regional 

Western Australia during 2004-05.   

 

In addition, ArtsWA funded a number of organisations that undertake regional service 

provision as a key element of their core duties including Country Arts WA, Community Arts 

Network WA, Art on the Move, the WA Music Industry Association, artsource: the Artists 

Foundation of WA and the State Literature Centre. 

 

The establishment of the second regionally-based arts development officer in the Gascoyne 

in October 2004 was made possible with the support of the Gascoyne Development 

Commission and the Shires of Carnarvon, Exmouth and Shark Bay.  The role of the officer is 
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to travel regularly throughout the region to provide advice and assistance in developing arts 

and cultural projects.   

 

The Pilbara Arts Development Officer position, supported by the Australia Council’s 

Audience and Market Development Division, was extended by a further 12 months and 

continued to provide assistance and advice to the more remote communities throughout the 

East Pilbara Shire and Western Desert.  

 

Through the Artflight program, 22 regionally based artists and arts workers were able to 

travel to Horsham, Victoria to attend the 2004 Regional Arts Australia National Conference 

Meeting Place.  West Australian delegates were able to network, showcase and promote 

their work and themselves to delegates and speakers from around Australia, resulting in new 

collaborations and partnerships for many. 

 

Perth-based staff undertook extensive field trips to all regions in Western Australia in 

response to requests for assistance from communities and to support regional events.  In 

September 2004, staff also travelled to the Indian Ocean Territories to conduct fieldwork and 

community consultation under the terms of the Department's Service Delivery Arrangement 

(SDA) with the Australian Government Department of Transport and Regional Services 

(DoTaRS). 

 

Funding for regional touring and exhibitions is devolved to Country Arts WA, Art on the Move 

and the State Literature Centre to manage on behalf of ArtsWA.  A total of $490,000 was 

provided to Country Arts WA, $100,000 to Art on the Move and $30,000 to the State 

Literature Centre.  In addition, the State’s four Major Performing Arts Companies (West 

Australian Ballet, West Australian Opera, West Australian Symphony and Black Swan 

Theatre Company) receive a total of $100,000 annually to support regional touring. 

 

Partnerships 
The following strategic partnerships which contribute to outcomes in the regions were 

established and maintained during 2004-2005:  

• Australia Council Audience and Market Development Division; 

• Department of Local Government and Regional Development; 

• Pilbara Development Commission; 

• Shire of East Pilbara; 
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• Gascoyne Development Commission; 

• Shire of Carnarvon; 

• Shire of Exmouth; and 

• Shire of Shark Bay. 

 

Regional Consultation 
The Department is committed to ensuring that people living in regional communities 

participate in its policy development processes.  Comment from people living in the regions 

was sought during development of the following policy initiatives and programs in 2004-05:  

• Championing Creativity – An arts development policy framework for WA 2004-07; 

• Creative Cultures – ArtsWA Indigenous Arts Development Policy; 

• Creative Connections – An Arts in Education Partnership Framework; 

• Cultural Commitments – Indigenous Policy Statement and Action Plan; 

• Museum Policy Reference Group Report; and 

• Community Cultural and Arts Facilities Fund. 

 

Regional Services Committee 
The Regional Services Committee (RSC) coordinates arts and cultural services in regional 

areas.  The RSC has representation from portfolio organisations that work in the regions, 

arts organisations that manage funding programs of behalf of the State, the WA Local 

Government Association and the Department of Local Government and Regional 

Development.  The RSC aims to meet several times a year and is a key reference point for 

the Department in relation to implementation of the Cultural Signposts policy. 

 

Regional Infrastructure 
The Department has continued to work with the Shire of Broome in relation to the 

development of the Broome Arts Centre, and with the City of Bunbury with regards to the 

development of the Bunbury History Museum. 

 

Geraldton Regional Hub Case Study 
The Geraldton Regional Hub Case Study conducted in the Mid West Region in 2004 is now 

complete. A report of the project will be finalised in July 2005 and the project will be 

acquitted in September 2005.  The study was a pilot project jointly funded by the Department 

of Communications, Information Technology and the Arts, the Western Australian Museum 

and the Department of Culture and the Arts.  It focussed on the collections sector, including 
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museums, libraries, galleries and archives, and aimed to describe and evaluate cross-

sectoral outreach activities conducted within the Mid West as a basis for planning future 

development. 

 

A Collections Extension Officer was appointed on a fixed-term contract (eight months) in 

June 2004 to conduct the extension services associated with the study.  Among other 

outcomes, the pilot project saw the development of a model for a regionally based extension 

service to support the endeavours of collections organisations across the sector. 

 

Office for Children and Youth - Youth Spaces and Facilities Fund 
In 2004-05, the Department continued to be represented on the Youth Spaces and Facilities 

Fund (YSFF) panel convened by the Office for Children and Youth.  The YSFF provides 

grants of up to $25,000 to regional communities to enable regional young people to access 

safe and secure community spaces for recreational, sporting and cultural activities. 

 

OBLIGATORY REPORTING 

State Government Regional Development Policy 
In 2004-05, the Department coordinated the portfolio’s reporting against relevant strategies 

contained in the State Government’s Regional Development Policy, Regional Western 

Australia: A Better Place to Live (2003).  This Policy acknowledges the vital role of arts and 

culture in regional development, with specific references in outcomes related to quality of 

regional lifestyles, regional economies, cohesive communities and conservation of the 

State’s heritage.  The outcomes are linked to those in the Department’s Cultural Signposts 

policy to ensure an integrated approach to regional arts and cultural development across 

government. 

 

GOAL 5:  GOVERNANCE 

To govern for all Western Australians in an open, effective and efficient manner that also 

ensures a sustainable future 

 

State Records Office 
The State Records Office (SRO) contributes to the above goal through “leading in the 

creation and preservation of, and access to, Government records”.  The SRO works to 

deliver four key objectives.  Outcomes for these four key objectives for 2004-05 are listed 

below. 
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SRO Objective 1.  Proper recording and management of State Government information 

Government recordkeeping in Western Australia is regulated by the State Records Act 2000, 

administered by the SRO.  The operations of the Act are overseen by the State Records 

Commission (the Commission) established under section 57 of the Act.  

 

Recordkeeping Plans 

The Act requires all State and Local Government organisations to have a 

Recordkeeping Plan (RKP) approved by the Commission, or, in some instances, by 

the relevant Minister, or the President of the Legislative Council or the Speaker of the 

Legislative Assembly, as appropriate.  

 

The RKPs set out how organisations’ recordkeeping complies in practice with 

recordkeeping standards and principles established by the Commission under 

section 61 of the Act. 

 

All of the first round of RKPs were submitted to the Director of State Records before 

mid June 2004. By December 2004, all 309 RKPs were approved or cleared by the 

Commission. Of the 160 RKPs submitted by State Government organisations, 79 

were approved, while the remaining 81 were cleared pending the approval of 

Disposal Authorities.  All 149 Local Government Organisations’ plans have been 

approved.  Of the total number of RKPs processed, 53% have been approved for the 

maximum statutory period of five years, 27.3% have been approved for three years, 

2.8% for two years and 16.9% for one year.  The plans that were approved for less 

than the statutory maximum of five years were those from the agencies that had 

difficulties meeting the minimum standards, often for reasons beyond their control.  

 

In many cases, Government organisations committed to providing additional 

information (“interim documentation”) to ensure that they meet the minimum 

requirements set out by the Commission. The SRO has developed a plan for dealing 

with the interim documentation and the revised plans to ensure their orderly 

processing.  
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Retention and Disposal Authorities  

Retention and Disposal Authorities (Authorities) are an integral part of Recordkeeping 

Plans since they govern which government records will be State archives, the 

retention period for those government records that are not State archives and may 

address other matters such as restrictions on access to State archives.  Prior to 

being submitted to the Commission, the Authorities are examined by the State 

Records Advisory Committee which makes recommendations to the Commission 

whether an Authority should be approved or not.  

 

The assessment of Authorities was suspended in 2004 in order to meet the 

Commission’s deadline of 16 December 2004 for the approval of RKPs.  The 

evaluation of Authorities was reinstated on 17 December 2004 and by the end of 

June 2005, 28 Authorities were approved by the Commission. 

 

Digital Records Management 

In August 2004, the Commission established a Digital Records Working Group under 

section 62(3) of the Act to assist in the establishment of standards and guidelines for 

the management of digital records across Government.  The Group includes 

representatives of a number of State organisations, local government and academia.  

The work of the Group will also assist the participation of the SRO in the Australasian 

Digital Records Initiative established by the Council of Australasian Archives and 

Records Authorities.  

 

The Group analysed significant issues in electronic record keeping, researched 

digital records management regimes in other Australian jurisdictions and other 

countries and commenced the development of core standards for digital records 

management. 

 

SRO Objective 2.    Well kept and managed State archives 

The State archives collection in the SRO custody contains about 15,000 linear 

metres of State archives.  The collection is housed primarily in the Alexander Library 

Building but a significant volume of State archives is stored at a repository at 

Dianella. 
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During 2004-05 the SRO’s archives preservation program was scaled down due to 

the need to redirect staff to meet the target of processing all RKPs and Retention and 

Disposal Authorities. As a result, a limited program was undertaken aimed at basic 

housekeeping issues such as rehousing and monitoring of archival records.  This 

included an ongoing program to line archive boxes to limit acid transfer, development 

of a boxing program for outsize archives such as registers and indexes, and cleaning 

and stabilisation of records prior to microfilming.  The biggest microfilming project 

undertaken during the year was the filming of the City of Stirling rate books, which will 

carry on into the 2005-06 program.  In addition, over 1500 Lands Department 

townsite plans, dating from the first years of the colony to the 1970s, were digitised.  

The SRO is currently developing standards for the digitisation of other record formats 

to enable the records to be accessed over the Internet and via an internal image 

databank. 

 

The SRO has been unable to accept transfer of any State archives to the State 

archives collection since July 2001 due to a lack of suitable archive storage space.  

As a consequence approximately two thirds of State archives are retained by various 

government organisations. Archives which are not being housed in conditions of 

suitable archival standards are at risk of damage and improper destruction. The de-

centralised arrangement also means that the public are not able to access archives 

centrally. The SRO is developing a plan for building the register of State archives to 

include data of some State archives currently in the custody of other Government 

organisations and making it publicly accessible. The Government has committed 

funds to enable a business case to be prepared for the funding to construct and 

operate a new State archives repository to accommodate long term archival storage 

needs. 

The SRO has also been negotiating with the Western Australian branch of the 

National Archives of Australia (NAA) in regard to the NAA providing a limited amount 

of storage space for State archives at its premises in East Victoria Park. In return, the 

SRO has agreed to share with the NAA some of its office accommodation and search 

room facilities in the Alexander Library Building. The collocated search facility will 

provide a convenient one-stop public archive source for all researchers. 

 

SRO Objective 3.  Equitable access to State archives 

Section 73 of the Act requires the Director of State Records to: 
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• provide an information service about State archives in the State archives 

collection; 

• provide public access to unrestricted archives; 

• provide facilities and services to enable archives to be effectively used for 

administrative requirements and for study and research; and 

• create and maintain a register of all State archives, including those that are not in 

the State archives collection. 

 

Access to the State archives collection is provided through the SRO Search Room 

located on the ground floor of the Alexander Library Building.  

 

To facilitate access to the information contained in the collection, the SRO publishes 

various finding aids, indexes and guides, available in the Search Room as well as 

through the SRO website.  

 

During the year:  

• 4463 clients used the Search Room, including the microfilm area;  

• 7965 items were requested from the State archives collection;  

• 1191 of the items requested were maps;  

• 7584 microforms were used by clients; 

• 2813 telephone enquiries were answered; 

• 4384 reference desk enquiries were answered; and 

• 635 reference queries received by fax, letter or email were registered. 

 

The register of State archives in the State archives collection is accessible through 

AEON (Archives Explored Online) on the SRO website. AEON was formally launched in 

November 2004 and a large scale data entry project has been underway through a SRO 

work experience project which commenced in late October 2004.  The purpose of this 

project is to ensure that the entirety of the State archives collection is listed online which 

will significantly improve their accessibility. The project team is on target to achieve this 

goal by the end of 2005.  This will mark a very significant achievement for Western 

Australia as the SRO will be amongst the leading Australian archival institutions in terms 

of the proportion of the State archives collection being listed online.   
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At present, the State archives collection in the SRO custody contains only one third of 

State archives and the additional two thirds of State archives are held by various 

Government agencies until suitable storage is established.  This arrangement 

significantly limits public access to State archives.  The SRO is developing a plan for 

building up the register of State archives to include data on some State archives currently 

in the custody of other Government organisations and making it publicly accessible. 

 

The SRO also disseminates information about material in the State archives collection 

through periodic lunchtime seminars, newsletter articles, media releases, tours for 

students, presentations to various interest groups, and participation in various state, 

national and international conferences and other events.  

 

SRO Objective 4.  Effective and efficient advice and service to Government organisations 

The Director’s functions under section 73 of the State Records Act include, amongst 

others: 

• to advise Government organisations on recordkeeping and on training their staff 

in recordkeeping and to assist in such matters; and 

• to advise Government organisations on the preparation of and compliance with 

Recordkeeping Plans. 

 

A significant part of the SRO website is dedicated to Government recordkeeping and the 

publication of standards, principles, guidelines and other recordkeeping tools. 

 

In the second half of 2004, most of the formal training for Government organisations was 

temporarily suspended due to the demands on the SRO resources created by the need 

to process all RKPs and have them approved by the Commission by December 2004.  

The provision of training courses and information sessions was reinstated in early 2005 

and provided, on request, to local Governments in the Shires of Augusta/Margaret River, 

Dunsborough, Shark Bay and Trayning. 

 

Throughout the year, the SRO continued to provide guidance and assistance to 

individual agencies in regard to the development of their RKPs and Retention and 

Disposal Authorities. 
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Advice on Government recordkeeping is also disseminated through the SRO’s 

participation on various professional associations and interest groups concerned with 

recordkeeping. 

 

Business Arts Development 
ArtsWA acknowledges the need for good business practices to support the invaluable work 

of the multi-year and triennially funded organisations and to support their initiative in 

maintaining relevant services to the community, particularly the creative arts sector.  

 

Guidelines for workplace planning were released to support and assist ArtsWA’s funded 

organisations. 

 

Review of Devolved Funding Programs 

The review of ArtsWA’s devolved funding model was initiated in June 2004 with an aim to: 

• consider the effectiveness and efficiency of devolved programs to support continual 
improvement in the delivery of arts development programs to the community; 

• align the management and overall service delivery of devolved funding with broader 
Government policy; and 

• determine if processes were in place that ensured service standards and 
responsiveness to the needs of the creative arts sector are consistently maintained. 

Building on the research previously conducted on devolved funding processes, a Devolved 
Funding Framework was developed in 2004-05 including: 

• a devolved funding agreement for arts development program delivery; and 

• a new process for planning, monitoring and assessing program delivery for ArtsWA 
and the organisations with devolved funding agreements.  

Implementation of the framework will occur throughout 2006 in consultation with the arts 
organisations delivering existing devolved funding programs. 

 

Review of Visual Arts Initiatives 

In March 2005, a review of the Department’s existing visual arts initiatives was commenced, 
including: 

• the preferred providers scheme; 

• the art curator position; 

• the Government artworks database; and 
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• the art acquisition committee. 

A consultant was engaged on 3 June 2005 to prepare an options and issues paper related to 
the above work areas.  The aim is to determine the scope of the Department’s current 
activities in these areas, identify some of the surrounding issues and develop options for 
more effective delivery.  The review will be completed in late 2005. 

 

Work Areas of the Department 
Ministerial Services 

The Office of the Director General is responsible for coordinating and tracking all Ministerial 

correspondence to and from the Department and portfolio organisations. 

 2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 

Number of Ministerials administered by 
the Department 1809 1873 1579 

Number of Ministerials requiring a written 
response by the Minister 

714 457 415 

Percentage responded to on time (up to 7 
days) 81% 80% 77% 

Percentage less than 5 days overdue 17% 16% 16% 

Percentage more than 5 days 3% 4% 7% 

This table represents the number of Ministerials administered by the Department. 

Audit and Risk Management  

A risk based Annual Audit Plan 2004-05, developed in consultation with organisations across 
the portfolio and approved by the Departmental Audit and Risk Management Committee, 
was successfully conducted.  The Group, comprising a Manager and a Senior Auditor, 
conducted the Plan and also engaged and managed contract auditors for particular audits. 
The Group also provided audit and risk management consultancy to DCA portfolio 
organisations and their Audit and Risk Management Committees. 

 

A Portfolio Risk Management Policy and an Implementation Strategy have been published 
on the Intranet. A number of risk management workshops were conducted in conjunction 
with RiskCover to assist work areas to identify, analyse and record their risks. The portfolio 
has determined that it will adopt Riskbase as the primary software tool for recording and 
reporting risks. 
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Procurement  

The Department appointed an outplaced Department of Treasury and Finance Contract 
Manager to oversee contract management and ongoing procurement reform.  Procurement 
policies and guidelines have been updated and a regular update, Procurement News, has 
been developed for the Intranet. 

Training and information sessions relating to updated policies have been provided to all 
portfolio organisations and will continue, particularly in areas where whole-of-government 
procurement policies have been introduced.  

The Department has been involved in the ongoing procurement reform across the West 
Australian public sector.  The Department of Treasury and Finance’s Annual Forward 
Procurement Planning initiative was also introduced and a portfolio wide working group has 
been established to assist with its implementation.  

Human Resources 

Employee Relations 

The Department has a broad portfolio mix with a diverse range of occupational groups, 
covered by a range of different awards, agreements and unions. This provides challenges as 
well as opportunities for the Department in relation to workforce relations.  

The key priorities for workforce relations are: 

• to establish better communication with unions and employees, at all levels, to reduce 
the incidence and severity of disputes;  

• to establish an equitable enterprise bargaining framework that balances the 
objectives of government, the objectives of the Department and the considerations of 
the employees; and 

• to ensure compliance with legislation, government policy and public sector standards.  

Workforce Planning and Development 

A number of projects and initiatives have commenced to focus on attracting, retaining and 
developing employees including the development of a new Employee Performance 
Management System and a new Induction Program. 

Workforce Management 

In November 2004, work commenced on the Human Resources Management Integrated 
System (HRMIS) to provide employees access to book leave online via the ‘employee kiosk’.  
All employees of the Department, including ScreenWest, are now successfully booking their 
leave online. The implementation is ongoing and planning is underway to implement this 
functionality to the rest of the portfolio organisations in early 2005-2006.  
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Finance 

The Accounting Manual for the Department was released in November 2004.  This manual 
provides high-level policy advice to clients in the portfolio in areas such as expenditure, 
revenue, assets, purchasing, budgeting and reporting and human resources. 

Finance and Human Resources have undertaken a number of initiatives in preparing for the 
Government’s new Shared Services Centre (SSC).  These initiatives have included 
conducting change management workshops for all Finance and Human Resource staff, 
contributing on working groups for the SSC and raising awareness with clients on the 
expected changes to the services currently provided by the Department. 

Information Services 

Information Services has focused on rationalising the shared systems that benefit all 
organisations in the Culture and Arts Portfolio. Projects to rationalise email, records 
management and virus protection shared systems were completed during the year. Along 
with the rationalisation of several different email systems to one common system, agreement 
was reached on a new common email naming standard for all portfolio organisations. The 
rationalisation of these disparate systems across the portfolio has resulted in cost reductions 
and streamlined delivery of information services to portfolio organisations. 

 

Disability Services Planning Committee 

The Disability Services Planning Committee is convened to improve access across the 
Portfolio, principally through advising on implementation of the Disability Services Plan (see 
People and Communities section).  Membership of the Committee comprises all of the 
directorates and portfolio organisations, together with Disability in the Arts Disadvantage in 
the Arts Australia (WA) Inc., the Disability Services Commission and two customer 
representatives who have a disability or impairment.   

The committee continued to meet quarterly in the reporting period 2004-2005.   During this 
time it increased its focus on improving the provision of information and services to people 
with disabilities. The committee also focused on advocacy areas and was a presenter at the 
2004 NICAN Conference in Perth and facilitated an accessible venues tour of the Perth 
Cultural Centre.   

 

Indian Ocean Territory Service Delivery Arrangement 
A three-year Service Delivery Arrangement (SDA) was finalised in May 2003 between the 

Department of Culture and the Arts and the Department of Territories and Regional Services 

for the provision of services to the Indian Ocean Territories (IOTs), including Christmas and 

Cocos (Keeling) Islands.  
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The SDA aims to provide arts and cultural services to the IOT communities to a level 

comparative with a similarly remote West Australian community.  2004-05 was the second 

year of the SDA and, due to the complexity involved with managing the provision of services 

from a range of Government and non-Government organisations, an internal audit was 

undertaken of the first year’s activities.  This resulted in some amendments to the 

procedures, which were implemented in late 2004.   

 

Cultural Ministers’ Council 
The Department supports Western Australia’s participation in the Cultural Ministers’ Council 

(CMC), the CMC Standing Committee and its working parties.  In 2004-05, the Department 

convened and chaired the Indigenous Intellectual Property Toolkit Steering Committee and 

managed the tender process for awarding this contract on behalf of the CMC. More 

information can be found under the entry in Goal 2. 

 

Community Insurance Fund 
The Department has an agreement with the Insurance Commission of Western Australia 

(ICWA) to review and endorse Community Insurance Fund (CIF) applications from arts and 

cultural organisations.  This arrangement has confirmed that the issue of public liability 

insurance is a matter of critical importance to arts and cultural organisations.  The rise in 

insurance premiums has potential to negatively impact on the number and quality of arts and 

cultural experiences presented throughout the State and the cost of participating in these 

experiences. 

 

Government Art and Cultural Heritage Collection Database 
The Department is responsible for documenting all artworks currently owned by the West 

Australian Government.  These artworks and heritage items are housed in various 

government agencies throughout the State.  The database currently records over 1000 items 

and is valued at more than $140,000.  Work continued throughout 2004-05 to ensure that all 

database records pertaining to the West Australian Government Art Collection are up to date 

and accurate. 

 

Sustainability 
In late 2004, the Department prepared a report against the objectives of Focus on the Future 

– The Western Australian State Sustainability Strategy (2003).  The Department participates 
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in the Premier’s Sustainability Roundtable, which has a community focus, and worked with 

portfolio organisations on the development of sustainability action plans. 

 

Intranet 
The Department’s Intranet was used to share information across the portfolio and as a 

repository for policies, standard forms and employee contact information. The site is 

managed though a content management system and administrators have been nominated to 

maintain their area’s site. The Intranet site is set as the default home page for all employees. 

 

OBLIGATORY REPORTING 

Evaluations  
Contemporary Music Strategy 

An interim evaluation of the State Government Contemporary Music Strategy was 

undertaken by ArtsWA during 2004-05 which indicated a marked growth in the West 

Australian contemporary music industry.  This growth and the overall positive results for the 

industry resulted in the State Government recommitting its support for a further four years 

from 2005-06. 

 

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts (PICA) 

In November 2004, the Department commissioned Strategy and Performance Association to 

review the Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts (PICA) and  produce a business and 

organisational analysis for the organisation in light of increased funding from the National 

Visual Arts and Crafts Strategy  The review cost $20 000 and the final report outlines 

recommendations for future partnerships, sponsorship approaches and changes to the 

organisational structure.  

 

Other significant evaluations included the Review of Devolved Funding Programs and a 

Review of Visual Arts Initiatives. Details of both reviews are provided under their respective 

headings in the Governance section. 

 

Functional Review   

During 2004-05, the Department participated in the whole-of-government review of corporate 

services and procurement (Office of Shared Services) aimed at optimising the quality and 

cost effectiveness of human resources and finance, through the establishment of shared 
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services centres, and procurement.  The Department is part of the Cluster A shared services 

centre and the Director General, Alastair Bryant, is chair of the Cluster. 

 

Information Statement 

The Department publishes its information statement on its website at 
http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/freedomofinformation.asp  

 

Freedom of Information 

The Department supports Freedom of Information (FOI) services to all aspects of the 

community, including the public, the media and Members of Parliament. Two FOI 

applications were received during 2004-2005. No applications went to internal or external 

review. There was one outstanding FOI request at 30 June 2005.  

 

Recordkeeping Plans  
The Department submitted its recordkeeping plan to the State Records Office in March 2004.  

During 2004-05 the Department’s records management system was upgraded and 
performance indicators for recordkeeping were developed. A preliminary internal evaluation 
of recordkeeping systems was undertaken with planning underway for a more formal 
independent evaluation.   

Five recordkeeping training sessions were held to raise staff awareness of record keeping 
during 2004/2005. Further sessions are planned for 2005-06. 

While a formal review of the recordkeeping training program has not taken place, client 
feedback on the existing training program has been positive, with the demand for record 
keeping training increasing.  

The Department is developing an Intranet site for recordkeeping information to assist both 
new and existing employees to understand their roles and responsibilities with regard to 
record keeping.  

The State Records Office’s (SRO) Recordkeeping Plan was approved by the State Records 
Commission on 1 July 2002.  The Plan will be reviewed before 1 July 2007. 

Most of the SRO records management functions have been outsourced to the State Library 
of Western Australia’s Corporate Information Unit.  However, the records are managed in 
accordance with the SRO’s Recordkeeping Plan. In accordance with the compliance 
requirements of Principle 6 of the State Records Commission Standard 2: 

• the efficiency and effectiveness of the recordkeeping systems and practices will be 
reviewed to feed into the Recordkeeping Plan review process to be undertaken 
before 1 July 2007; 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/freedomofinformation.asp
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• induction, including recordkeeping responsibilities, is conducted as new staff are 
appointed;  

• recordkeeping training is conducted as systems and practices change; and 

• training requirements are reviewed periodically until a formal and more regular review 
can be implemented. This is aimed to be carried out before 1 July 2007.  
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Advertising and Sponsorship 

Treasurer's Instruction 903 
Expenditure related to Advertising and Market Research Organisations 2004-05. 
In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907 expenditure by the Department of 
Culture and the Arts on advertising and related costs is listed below: 

a) Advertising agencies  Nil  

b) Market research organisations  $32,136.52 Patterson Market Research  

c) Polling organisations  Nil  

d) Direct mail organisations  Nil  

e) Media advertising organisations   

Job vacancies   

 $726.00 Drake Australia 

 $5,730.63 Marketforce 

 $28.50 State Law Publisher 

 $4,220.81 Southside Personnel 

 $4,058.79 Price Advertising & Consulting 

 $1,218.10 Allied Pickfords 

Total - Job Vacancies $15,982.83  

Other   

 $19,744.59 Media Decisions WA 

 $3,486.84 Marketforce Ltd 

 $450.00 Brad Coleman 

 $184.59 WA Genealogical Society 

 $340.91 WA Local Government Association 

 $830.00 Josie Mitchell   

 $2,787.29 Marketforce Productions 

 $220.00 Coral Coast Signs 

 $120.27 Northern Guardian 

Total - Other $28,164.49  

TOTAL  $76,283.84  
 



  2004-2005 ANNUAL REPORT 

66 

Sustainability 

The Sustainability Code of Practice for Government Agencies was released in September 
2004 as part of the Government’s strategy to address sustainability through a 
comprehensive, integrated, whole-of-government approach. The Code of Practice requires 
government agencies to lead the way in addressing a range of issues including organisation 
governance, sustainable resource management and community engagement, by preparing a 
Sustainability Action Plan to respond to the goals and commitments outlined by the Code. 
The goals of the Code are to ensure that: 

• planning, reporting and decision making are conducted in accordance with 
sustainability principles; 

• organisation operations support sustainability; and 

• public sector employees are encouraged and empowered to support sustainability. 

The Department established a Sustainability Action Plan Committee to formulate, manage 
and share broad ideas and objectives to meet the sustainability agenda. In October 2004, a 
Sustainability Action Plan was developed with representatives from portfolio organisations. 

The Department has endeavoured in its strategic planning processes to align all outcomes 
and activities with the relevant goals and strategic outcomes articulated in Better Planning: 
Better Services, A Strategic Planning Framework for the Western Australian Public Sector 
and the sustainability principles, practices and actions within the State Sustainability 
Strategy.  In addition specific action undertaken in 2004-05 included the development of an 
energy section on the Intranet with details on actions to take to reduce energy consumption. 
Staff are encouraged to continue recycling waste paper and more recycling facilities are 
being planned for in 2005-06. 

 

Equal Employment Opportunity Outcomes 

During 2004-05, the Department continued to progress the initiatives within the Department’s 
Equity and Diversity Plan 2003-2005. The Plan’s initiatives focus on key diversity groups 
including people from culturally and linguistic diverse backgrounds, Indigenous people, 
people with disabilities, youth and women in management.  

Strategies that have been implemented during the year include: 

• disability awareness training for employees; 

• collecting equity and diversity information on new employees; 

• providing diversity and EEO information on the Intranet and to new employees in the 
induction process; 

• continuing to support work experience opportunities which particularly assist in 
developing youth; 



  2004-2005 ANNUAL REPORT 

67 

• implementing a school-based traineeship program which provides placements to high 
school students; and 

• recruiting Indigenous people through both targeted and routine selection processes. 

The Portfolio has exceeded the equity and diversity targets for 2004-05 in the areas of 
distribution of women, people with disabilities and people from culturally diverse 
backgrounds as determined in the Equity and Diversity Plan 2003-2005 and the whole of the 
public sector objectives. 

 

Workforce Demographics as at 30 June 2005 

Employment Type Total Women Men 

Permanent Full-time 461 271 190 

Permanent Part-time 159 130 29 

Fixed Term Full-time 81 47 34 

Fixed Term Part-time 35 29 6 

Casual paid on 30 June 73 50 23 

Trainee 6 5 1 

Total 815 532 283 

 

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes  

Compliance with the Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes is assessed by a number of 
different methods including regular internal and external reviews of related procedures and 
staff feedback. A rolling internal audit program reviewed the performance management and 
grievance resolution standards. All other standards will be reviewed in subsequent years as 
part of this program. 

In response to the 2004 internal audit, the Department’s Grievance Resolution Policy was 
updated and all Human Resources policies were made available on the intranet. In addition, 
a performance management system and template to be applied across the portfolio is 
currently being developed including an implementation and training program. 

There were no breaches of the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management 
for the annual reporting period 2004-05. 
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Corruption Prevention 

A Fraud Prevention and Detection Policy was issued in March 2005 and published on the 
Intranet. 

Audit and Risk Management engaged specialist audit contractors to conduct an audit 
targeting potential fraud associated specifically with a scheduled 2004-05 audit of Accounts 
Payable.  Specialised audit software was used in the conduct of the audit and whilst no 
incidence of fraud was detected, audit findings and recommendations were made to improve 
controls and mitigate the risk of fraud. 

In the conduct of audits for the 2004-05 Audit Plan across the portfolio, Audit and Risk 
Management routinely identified areas of risk where controls could be improved, including 
corruption prevention, and made recommendations to management. These findings and 
management responses were the subject of reports to the Department’s Audit and Risk 
Management Committee. 

The implementation of the Risk Management Strategy in accordance with Treasurer’s 
Instruction 825 and ANZS 4360:2004, which is currently in progress, will assist with the 
identification, analysis and control of risks associated with corruption and fraud. 

 

Public Interest Disclosures 

The Department has Public Interest Disclosure guidelines and procedures to ensure that the 
obligations of the authority under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 (the Act) are 
implemented, which includes the appointment of Public Interest Disclosure Officers. There 
were no disclosures made under the Act for the reporting period. In addition to the Code of 
Conduct that sets out minimum standards of conduct and integrity, the Department is 
currently developing a policy on misconduct.  

 

PUBLICATIONS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC 

2004-2005 

• Annual Report 2003-2004/ Department of Culture and the Arts: Department of 

Culture and the Arts, 2004 http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/pubs.asp  

• Championing Creativity – An arts development policy framework for Western 

Australia 2004-2007: Department of Culture and the Arts, ArtsWA, 2004 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsDevelopmentPolicy.asp 

• Creative Cultures – ArtsWA Indigenous Arts Development Policy 2004: Department 

of Culture and the Arts, ArtsWA, 2004 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/IndigenousArtsPolicy.asp 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/pubs.asp
http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsDevelopmentPolicy.asp
http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/IndigenousArtsPolicy.asp
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• ArtsEdge Calendar November 2004/ Department Culture and the Arts; Department of 

Education and Training: Department of Education; Department of Culture and the 

Arts, November 2004 

• Artsline – ArtsWA’s Magazine Issue No 17 Summer 2004 - 2005 

• Designer Fashion Grants Handbook 2004-05: ArtsWA, 2004 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsWAGrants.asp 

• Arts and Cultural Monitor Report 2005/ Department of Culture and the Arts: 

Department of Culture and the Arts, 2005. http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ACMsurvey.asp 

• Arts Grants Handbook Western Australia 2005: ArtsWA, 2005 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsWAGrants.asp  

• Contemporary Music Grants Handbook Western Australia 2005: ArtsWA, 2005 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsWAGrants.asp  

• Creative Connections – An Arts in Education Partnership Framework 2005 – 2007/ 

Department Culture and the Arts; Department of Education and Training: Department 

of Education; Department of Culture and the Arts, 2005 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/artsined.asp  

• Cultural Commitments – Indigenous Policy Statement and Action Plan/ Department 

of Culture and the Arts: Department of Culture and the Arts, 2005. 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/CulturalCommitments.asp 

• Western Australian State Living Treasures 2005/ Department of Culture and the Arts: 

Department of Culture and the Arts, 2005. http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/SLTawards.asp 

• Artsline – ArtsWA’s Magazine Issue No 18 Winter 2005 

• Community Cultural and Arts Facilities Fund (CCAFF) Pilot Round Guidelines - April 

2005/ Department of Culture and the Arts - Perth, WA 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/CCAFFHome.asp 

• ArtsEdge Calendar June 2005/ Department Culture and the Arts; Department of 

Education and Training: Department of Education; Department of Culture and the 

Arts, June 2005 

• ArtsEdge – A Guide to Arts Activities for Western Australian School June 2005/ 

Department Culture and the Arts; Department of Education and Training: Department 

of Education; Department of Culture and the Arts, June 2005 

• Recordkeeping in Western Australia, Who is responsible, A guide for State & Local 
Government Employees and Contractors, State Records Office of Western Australia, 
2004 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsWAGrants.asp
http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ACMsurvey.asp
http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsWAGrants.asp
http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsWAGrants.asp
http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/artsined.asp
http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/CulturalCommitments.asp
http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/SLTawards.asp
http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/CCAFFHome.asp
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• General Disposal Authority for Administrative Records, State Records Office of 
Western Australia, 2003  

• SRC Guideline 2: Storage of State Archives retained by Government agencies, State 
Records Office of Western Australia, 2003 

• SRC Standard 1: Government Recordkeeping, State Records Office of Western 
Australia, 2002 

• SRC Standard 2: Recordkeeping Plans, State Records Office of Western Australia, 
2002 

• SRC Standard 3: Appraisal of Records, State Records Office of Western Australia, 
2002 

• SRC Standard 4: Restricted Access Archives, State Records Office of Western 
Australia, 2002 

• SRC Standard 5: Compulsory Transfer of Archives, State Records Office of Western 
Australia, 2002 

• SRC Standard 6: Outsourcing, State Records Office of Western Australia, 2002 

• State of the Record, State Records Office of Western Australia Quarterly Newsletter, 
volume 1, issue 1 – volume 4, issue 2, 2001-2005 

• Records Disposal – A Handbook for Government Agencies, State Records Office of 
Western Australia, 2000 

• General Disposal Authority for Human Resource Management Records (revised), 
State Records Office of Western Australia, 1999 

• General Disposal Authority for Local Government Records (revised), State Records 
Office of Western Australia, 1999 

• General Disposal Authority for Financial and Accounting Records, State Records 
Office of Western Australia, 1996 

• How to design a Records Management Procedure Manual, State Records Office of 
Western Australia, 1995 

• Policies and Standards Manual (State Records Office of Western Australia, 
incremental, launched in 1992 

• Order in the Court: A guide to the Records of the Supreme Court of WA, State 
Records Office of Western Australia, 1990 
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Whole of Government 
The Department works with other State Government agencies and local governments to plan 

and develop facilities that jointly meet the needs of all parties. In 2004-05 the Department 

was represented on the following committees: 

• Department of Housing and Works Client Council; 

• State Sporting Facilities Plan External Reference Group; 

• Youth Spaces Planning Group and Assessment Panel; 

• Northbridge, Shaping the Future, Crime Prevention Liaison Group; 

• Capital City Perth Steering Committee; 

• Multipurpose Indoor Entertainment and Sports Stadium Steering Committee and 
Working Group; 

• Knowledge Economy Taskforce; 

• Aboriginal Tourism Interagency Working Group; and 

• Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce. 

 

Employee Assistance Program 
The Department’s Employee Assistance Program is provided to employees at all 

metropolitan and regional sites.   

 

The services provided by OSA Group include: 

• brief therapy counselling for employees and immediate family members; 

• consultation available for managers and supervisors to discuss job-related situations; 

• 24 hour, seven days per week critical incident stress debriefing and crisis 
counselling; and 

• workplace mediation. 

 

OSA Group has also provided support to the Department’s managers and employees on 

significant change management issues that have arisen during the year.  The utilisation rate 

for the Department has decreased slightly from the previous year to 4.9% based on 831 

employees.   
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Occupational Safety Health 
The occupational safety and health (OSH) committee continues to operate and now includes 

an OSH representative from the Perth Theatre Trust.  A revised OSH manual containing 

relevant policies and procedures has been made available on the Intranet.  

 

Workers Compensation and Rehabilitation 

 2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 

Frequency rate 10.31 2.94 3.47 
LTI*/Disease claims 1.8 0.45 0.68 
Estimated cost of claims/$100 
wage roll $1.34 $0.10 $0.4 

Contribution (premium rate) 0.44 0.65 0.28 
Rehabilitation success rate N/A N/A 100% 
(*LTI – Lost Time Injuries) 

The figures above relate only to staff in the four directorates of the Department; Culture and 

Arts Development; Corporate Assets and Business Support; Portfolio Coordination and the 

State Records Office. 
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CERTIFICATION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005 

 

 

 

I hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant 

and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Department of Culture and the Arts 

performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Department for the financial year 

ended 30 June 2005. 

 
ALASTAIR BRYANT 
DIRECTOR GENERAL 

15 August 2005 
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

 

Government Goal:   To enhance the quality of life and wellbeing of all people 
 throughout Western Australia. 

 

Outcome: A community that is informed of, and has access to, a diverse 
range of innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences. 

Description 
This outcome preserves and provides access to Western Australia's natural and social 

heritage, supports our artistic development and provides a link to information and culture 

nationally and internationally. This outcome is provided by the Department of Culture and the 

Arts (including ArtsWA and the State Records Office), the Art Gallery of Western Australia, 

the State Library of Western Australia, the Perth Theatre Trust, ScreenWest Inc and the 

Western Australian Museum. 

 

EFFECTIVENESS INDICATORS 2004-2005 

These performance indicators address the effectiveness with which the Department of 

Culture and the Arts undertakes work associated in achieving its Outcome as approved by 

the Government.  
 

To measure effectiveness indicators one and two, the Department of Culture and the Arts 

commissioned Patterson Market Research to run a telephone omnibus survey in March 2005 

covering a number of areas relevant to culture and the arts, including perceptions of the 

effectiveness of the Department in achieving its outcome.  Iterations of this survey have also 

been conducted in 2003, and 2004. The results of this survey are used by the Department to 

track changes in community understanding and attitudes over time.  

 

A total of 400 interviews, drawn randomly from the population of WA (1.9m) were completed 

during March 2005, with 300 interviews completed with respondents in the Perth 

metropolitan area and the remaining 100 conducted with respondents from regional areas is 

Western Australia. Respondents interviewed were aged 16 years or over and were randomly 

selected within each household by using the “closest birthday” method.   

 

The data was weighted to reflect Australian Bureau of Statistics population statistics for WA.  

The population statistics used for calculating these weights were based on the 2001 Census 
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data. The response rate for the survey was 55%. Data analysis was completed using 

Surveycraft.  The survey has an error of 4.9% at the 95% level of confidence.  Response 

statistics for the 2005 Survey are outlined below.  

 

Response Statistics for the 2005 Survey N = 3,072 

Interviews 400 
Soft refusal (i.e. Just not interested, would rather not participate) 289 

Engaged 0 

No answer 8 

Call back (no specific time) 26 

Answer machine 0 

TOTAL useable sample 723 
Unusable sample (i.e. screener/quota full, disconnected etc) 1631 

Hard refusals (i.e. hanging up phone before identifying purpose)  718 

 

Key effectiveness indicator (1):  The extent to which the Department of Culture and the 
Arts is perceived to be effective in achieving its outcome. 
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Rationale  
Survey respondents were asked “How effective do you think the Department of Culture and 

the Arts is in achieving its outcome of a community that is informed of, and has access to, a 

diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge and culture experiences”.  79% of respondents 

felt that the Department had been effective to some degree in achieving its aims.  This is the 

same result as found in the 2004 survey.  Women and younger respondents were slightly 

more likely to perceive that the Department had been effective in achieving its outcome. This 

is a consistent trend with that found in previous surveys.  

 

Key effectiveness indicator (2): The extent to which the ArtsWA area of the 
Department of Culture and the Arts is perceived to be effective at developing, funding 
and promoting the arts. 
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Rationale 
The arts grants and development programs contribute significantly to the development of 

Western Australian artists and arts organisations.  The Department relies on the artists and 

the arts organisations to provide access to arts experiences and activities enabling the 

community to engage in the arts.   Without subsidy through ArtsWA, it would be difficult for 

artists and arts organisations to operate.  The consequences would be a reduction in the 
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quality and range of innovative ideas and creative experiences available to the Western 

Australian community. 

 

Survey respondents were asked, “How effective do you think ArtsWA is at developing, 

funding and promoting the arts?”  70% of respondents perceived ArtsWA to be at least 

somewhat effective in developing funding and promoting the Arts. The result is an increase 

of 3% compared to 2004, which is only slight and not statistically significant. 

 
Key effectiveness indicator (3):  The diversity of arts events funded through the 
ArtsWA area of the Department of Culture and the Arts. 
 

A new measure was introduced in 2004-2005 for the above indicator to better record the 

diversity of activity supported by ArtsWA. The new measure relates to the base funding 

provided to Western Australian’s key triennial and multiyear funded arts and cultural 

organisations.  

 
3A  Arts Grants (Projects) 
ArtsWA funding is never the sole source of income supporting arts projects and programs.  

Recommendations for funding are made through ArtsWA’s five peer assessment panels; 

Arts Development, Indigenous Arts, Young People and the Arts, Contemporary Music and 

Designer Fashion.  Designer Fashion is a 2-year pilot program introduced in November 

2004.  Accordingly, the Designer Fashion Program has not been included. 

 

The key performance measures are based on the applications approved for funding in each 

financial year.  Reporting is verified by support materials, such as photographs, recordings, 

catalogues, programs, promotional material and media clippings, by the attendance of 

ArtsWA staff and panelists at events, and by the grant recipients’ reports on artistic 

achievements and project delivery including financial reporting. 

 

The categories of activity provided for the key performance measures are not exhaustive of 

the range of activity undertaken, but capture the core areas of support of the Arts Grants 

Program. 
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3A.(1)   Number of projects funded by Art form 

15

6

11

37

12

6

51

27

5

75

23

11

9

13

33

11

10

47

33

6

61

20

16

19

31

28

41

47

28

6

38

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Music

Dance

Writing

Visual Arts

Theatre

Multi-Arts

Young People & the Arts

Indigenous Arts

Creative Development Fund

Contemporary Music

Designer Fashion

G
ra

nt
 c

at
eg

or
y

Number of Projects Supported

2002-2003

2003-2004

2004-2005

Rationale

This performance indicator reports on the diversity of the arts projects events that are made 

possible through the ArtsWA grants process.  Fluctuations or variations from year to year are 

dependent on the number of applications made to ArtsWA and those granted funding in the 

different artforms and programs.  The funding of arts projects links directly to the outcome of 

the Department:  Through the funding programs, a broad range of artforms are supported, 

including music, dance, theatre, literature, visual arts, Indigenous arts, contemporary music 

and, from the latter half of 2004, the new Designer Fashion initiative.  These reflect the 

diversity in the range of ideas, knowledge, and cultural experiences provided to the 

community. 

The graph illustrates the continued diversity of projects funded by assessment through the 

independent peer panels established and administered by ArtsWA. The number of 

applications and subsequent approvals through the Contemporary Music program continued 
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to show strong growth during this financial year, and the graph also illustrates the strong 

interest that young people continue to demonstrate in undertaking artistic projects.   

 

The Premier’s Designer Fashion initiative was introduced in late 2004, and by the end of the 

financial year had resulted in 23 grants valued at over $190,000 being awarded for projects 

such as presentation and showcasing of designs, marketing, and participation in major 

events such as the Mercedes Australia Fashion week. 

 

Although the number of approvals through some artforms has shown a decline in recent 

years, the average value of each project funded remains high.  For example, the average 

value of grants for writing projects was over $13,000 and for visual arts and crafts 

practitioners over $10,000, reflecting ArtsWA’s policy of endeavouring to provide realistic 

funding in order to support the quality and integrity of the projects which are approved. 

 

A complete list of grants payments for 2004-05 with further details is available on the 

Department’s website at www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsWAgrants.asp

 

3B Triennially and Multiyear Funded Organisations  
(Base and Program Funding – including Category (A) Arts Organisations) 

 

Base funding is provided to Western Australia’s 44 key arts and cultural organisations 

towards the operational and artistic costs of delivering a minimum level of services and 

programs as described in tripartite, triennial and multiyear funding arrangements.  There are 

25 triennially funded organisations of which 4 have tripartite arrangements and 19 multiyear 

funded organisations. 

 

Base funding is intended to enable organisations to generate income from other sources, 

such as sponsorship, box office, fees and other funding to undertake activities and services 

beyond those supported by base funding.  Base funding is never intended to be the sole 

source of income for any organisation or to support the full range of activities expected from 

such organisations. 

 

Base funding is negotiated directly between ArtsWA and each organisation, and is based on 

the organisation’s business plan for the period of funding in accordance with ArtsWA’s 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/ArtsWAgrants.asp
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Guidelines for Triennial Funding and the Funding Model for Major Performing Arts 

Companies. 

 

Program funding is provided to key arts and cultural organisations towards the costs of 

delivering a specific program of artistic and cultural services and activities on application to 

the relevant ArtsWA Peer Panel and, if approved, is described in annual or multiyear funding 

arrangements with ArtsWA in accordance with ArtsWA’s Guidelines for Multiyear Funding. 

The majority of arts organisations operate on a calendar year.   

 

The key performance measures are based on the organisations’ annual budgets and 

programs.  Reporting is verified by support materials, such as photographs, recordings, 

catalogues, programs, promotional material and media clippings, by the attendance of 

ArtsWA staff and panelists at performances and events, and by the organisations’ reports on 

artistic achievements and project delivery including financial reporting required pursuant to 

funding agreements. 

 

Triennial and multi-year funded organisations supported by Artform. 

Artform 2003- 2004 2004 - 2005 

 No. of 
organisations 

Total Funding 
($) 

No. of 
organisations 

Total Funding 
($) 

Music 9 3,536,527 9 3,114,732

Dance 5 1,652,860 6 1,726,642

Writing 5 412,750 5   356,500

Visual Arts & Crafts 6 1,896,960 6 1,848,635

Theatre 10 2,068,285 9 2,284,255

Multi-Art forms 8 2,369,213 9 2,164,475

Indigenous Arts 2 410,342 2    430,853

Note:  Multi-Artforms includes funding for infrastructure and devolved grants to service organisations 
including Country Arts WA and Community Arts Network Ltd. 
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EFFICIENCY INDICATORS 2004-2005 

 
Efficiency indicator (1):  The efficiency with which the Department for Culture and the 
Arts undertakes Arts Industry Support 

 
This performance measure addresses the efficiency with which the Department for Culture 

and the Arts, through ArtsWA, undertakes work associated in providing Arts Industry 

Support, which consists primarily of development, funding and promotion of the arts industry. 

Efficiency indicator 

 
Actual 
2002-2003 

$ 

 
Actual 

2003-2004 
$ 

 
Target 

2004-2005 
$ 

 
Actual 

2004-2005 
$ 

Average cost per project and organisation 
supported 
 

50,866 45,067 37,132 38,823 

Average cost per industry development initiative
 22,804 13,590 13,907 11,163 

Average cost of grant application processed 
 309 279 232 256 

Average cost per industry interaction 
 47 22* 48 11** 

 

*The methodology used to calculate industry interactions was revised for 2003-2004.  The new 
methodology provides a more accurate indication of industry interactions, based on the average 
number of contacts for administering grant applications, partnership initiatives and general contacts.   

 
**The substantial decrease in cost per industry interaction is attributable to a major degree in the 
methods being used to calculate the number of contacts through emails, telephone calls, letters, 
meetings, and visits by the public to ArtsWA’s website which eventually result in grant applications 
being submitted to ArtsWA, and the general administration of grants, partnership initiatives, and client 
contracts.   

Staff now keep a detailed record during one month of the year of all contacts with clients, and the 
resulting figures are extrapolated to reflect as close as possible a 12-month period.  ArtsWA staff 
numbers are greater than in previous years and the increased level of activity is reflected in the 
figures.  This higher level of activity is expected to be maintained and future targets will take this into 
account. 
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Efficiency indicator (2):  The efficiency with which the Department for Culture and the 
Arts, through the State Records Office, delivers its recordkeeping and archival services to 
government agencies and the community. 

 
This performance measure addresses the efficiency with which the Department for Culture & 

the Arts, through the State Records Office, delivers its recordkeeping and archival services 

to government agencies and the community. 

 

Efficiency Indicator 

Actual 
2002-
2003 

$ 

Actual 
2003-
2004 

$ 

Target  
2004-
2005 

$ 

Actual 
 2004-
2005 

$ 

Average cost per Recordkeeping Plan and 
Retention and Disposal Schedule submitted and 
approved N/A 3,990 3,202 2,733*
Average cost per policy, standard, or guideline 
produced  24,757 27,267 26,683 26,683
Average cost of training and consultancies 
provided  211 14 160 53*
Average cost per hour of access provided to State 
archives  22 20 18 32
Average cost of Recordkeeping Plan monitoring N/A N/A 160 40*

 

*State Records Commission priorities during 2004 – 05 were the expediting of outstanding 

Recordkeeping Plans and Retention and Disposal Schedules and providing training and 

consultancies. Under section 60(1) of the State Records Act 2000, the State Records Commission is 

required to monitor government organisation compliance with the Act and with Recordkeeping Plans.  

However, only 20 hours could be allocated to the planning phase of the Monitoring function during 

2004 – 05.  Phased implementation will take effect during the 2005 – 06 period. 
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OUTPUT BASED MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

A summary of the Output Based Management (OBM) measures is reported here for the 

Department of Culture and the Arts and the portfolio organisations as they appear in the 

2004-05 Budget Statements.  The Performance Measures listed below are not audited. 

 

Outcome: A community that is informed of, and has access to, a diverse range of 
innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences. 

 

Description 

This outcome preserves and provides access to Western Australia’s natural and social 

heritage, supports our artistic development and provides a link to information and culture 

nationally and internationally.  This outcome is common to the Department of Culture and the 

Arts, the Art Gallery of Western Australia, State Library of Western Australia, the Perth 

Theatre Trust, ScreenWest and the Western Australian Museum. 

 

Outputs 

As previously indicated, the Department of Culture and the Arts and the statutory authorities 

associated with it receive their annual appropriation from Parliament for the purpose of a 

single outcome and all activities are organised into seven output groups. 

Output 1: Art Gallery of Western Australia - Art Gallery services. 

Output 2: State Library of Western Australia - Library, archival and information 

services. 

Output 3: Western Australian Museum - Museum services. 

Output 4: Department of Culture and the Arts (ArtsWA) - Arts industry support. 

Output 5: ScreenWest Inc. - Screen production industry support. 

Output 6: Perth Theatre Trust - Venue management services. 

Output 7: Department of Culture and the Arts (State Records Office) - 

Recordkeeping and Archival Services. 

 

Although each of the above outputs are listed in the budget papers for the Department of 

Culture and the Arts, the Art Gallery of Western Australia, the Perth Theatre Trust, 

ScreenWest, The Library Board of Western Australia and the Western Australian Museum 

produce their own output based performance measures and publish them in their respective 

annual reports. This report and these performance indicators relate only to the ArtsWA and 



  2004-2005 ANNUAL REPORT 

85 

State Records Office directorates of the Department under outputs four and seven 

respectively.  It should be noted that Output 7 relating to the State Records Office was first 

introduced in the 2002-2003 budget papers after the State Records Office became an 

operating directorate of the Department in November 2001 (transferred from the State 

Library of Western Australia) after the proclamation of the State Records Act 2000. 

 

OUTPUT 4: ARTS INDUSTRY SUPPORT 

Description:  Development, funding and promotion of the arts industry 

2003-2004 2004-2005 2004-2005 
  

Actual Target Actual 

Quantity    

Grants applications processed 755 900 850 

Arts projects and organisations supported 416 500 499 

Industry development initiatives 31 30 39 

Industry interactions (internet hits, meetings and 
consultations) 77,675 35,000 155,323 

Quality    

Client satisfaction with services - 90% 80% 

Grant applications processed 100% 100% 100% 

Grant contracts met 60% 80% 67% 

Industry development contracts met 38% 80% 45% 

Industry meetings and events represented 59% 70% 59% 

Timeliness    

Hours per week that the public has access to 
advisory and development services 40 40 40 

Days between acceptance of application and 
notification of outcome 31 80 33 

Grant payments made within 28 days of receipt of 
signed contract 100% 100% 100% 

Cost (efficiency)    

Average cost per grant application processed $279 $240 $256 

Average cost per project and organisation 
supported $45,067 $37,132 $38,823 

Average cost per industry development initiative $13,590 $13,907 $11,163 

Average cost per industry interaction $22 $48 $11* 

*The methodology used to calculate industry interactions was revised for 2003-2004.  The new 
methodology provides a more accurate indication of industry interactions, based on the average 
number of contacts for administering grant applications, partnership initiatives and general contacts.   
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The substantial decrease in cost per industry interaction is attributable to a major degree in the 
methods being used to calculate the number of contacts through emails, telephone calls, letters, 
meetings, and visits by the public to ArtsWA’s website which eventually result in grant applications 
being submitted to ArtsWA, and the general administration of grants, partnership initiatives, and client 
contracts.   

Staff now keep a detailed record during one month of the year of all contacts with clients, and the 
resulting figures are extrapolated to reflect as close as possible a 12-month period.  ArtsWA staff 
numbers are greater than in previous years and the increased level of activity is reflected in the 
figures.  This higher level of activity is expected to be maintained and future targets will take this into 
account. 
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OUTPUT 7: RECORDKEEPING AND ARCHIVAL SERVICES 

Description: Delivery of recordkeeping services to State and local Government agencies, 

improving the quality of current records management systems and provision 

of access to the State archives collection by Government agencies and the 

community. 

 
Performance Measures 2003 – 04 

Target 
2003 – 04 

Actual 
2004 – 05 

Target 
2004 – 05 

Actual 
Quantity     
Recordkeeping Plans (and R&Ds) 
developed and evaluated, and 
approved or cleared 

 
400 

 
164 

 
150 

 
225* 

Recordkeeping Plan monitoring - 
hours 

N/A N/A 1000 20* 

Policies, Standards and Guidelines 
produced 

3 3 3 2 

Hours of training and consultancies 
provided 

500 5950 500 6646* 

Access provided to State archives 
collection 

42850 40200 43,350 31,737** 

     
Quality     
Client Satisfaction with Services 95% 95% 95% 96% 
Proportion of the State archives 
collection that is catalogued 

97% 98% 98% 98% 

     
Timeliness     
Hours per week public has access to 
the collection in the search room 

 
35 

 
35 

 
35 

 
35 

     
Cost (Efficiency)     
Average cost per Recordkeeping 
Plan and Retention and Disposal 
Schedule submitted and approved. 

 
$1431 

 
$3,990 

 
$3,202 

 
$2,733* 

Average cost of Recordkeeping Plan 
monitoring 

N/A N/A $160 $40* 

Average cost per policy, standard, or 
guideline produced 

$23850 $27267 $26,683 $26,683 

Average cost of training and 
consultancies provided 

$143 $14 $160 $53* 

Average cost per hour of access 
provided to State archives 

$17 $20 $18 $32 

 
*State Records Commission priorities during 2004–05 were training and the expediting of outstanding 
Recordkeeping Plans and Retention and Disposal Schedules.   Under section 60(1) of the State 
Records Act 2000, the State Records Commission is required to monitor government organisation 
compliance with the Act and with Recordkeeping Plans.  However, only 20 hours could be allocated to 
the planning phase of the monitoring function during 2004–05.  Phased implementation will take effect 
during the 2005–06 period. 
 
** Increasing use of the SRO web site has resulted in a corresponding reduction in physical access. 
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CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005 

 

 

 

The accompanying financial statements of the Department of Culture & the Arts have been 

prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 

1985 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the 

financial year ending 30 June 2005 and the financial position as at 30 June 2005. 

 

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any 

particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate. 

 

 

    

 

Alastair Bryant     Alan Ferris 
Director General     Principal Accounting Officer 

12 August 2005     12 August 2005 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 
Statement of Financial Performance 
for period ending 30 June 2005 
 Note 2004/05 2003/04
    $000 $000
COST OF SERVICES    
Expenses from ordinary activities    
Employee expenses 4 39,136 35,192
Supplies and services (a) 5 2,622 2,249
Depreciation and amortisation expense 6 736 570
Accommodation expenses 7 910 760
Grants and subsidies 8 19,403 17,554
Capital user charge 9 33,578 30,701
Appropriations to agencies 10 27,484 28,345
Refund of prior years' revenue 11 34 438
Other expenses from ordinary activities 12 0 33
Total cost of services  123,903 115,842
    
Revenue from ordinary activities    
Revenue from operating activities    
User charges and fees 13 563 431
Sale of Goods 14 4 40
Commonwealth grants and contributions 15 20 204
    
Revenue from non-operating activities    
Other revenues from ordinary activities 16 662 181
Total revenues from ordinary activities  1,249 856
NET COST OF SERVICES  122,654 114,987
    
REVENUES FROM STATE GOVERNMENT    
Service Appropriation 17 116,355 113,128
Liability assumed by Treasurer  841 0
Assets assumed/(transferred)  0 622
Initial recognition of assets not previously recognised  0 40
Resources received free of charge  175 57
Total revenues from State Government 17 117,371 113,847
Change in net assets before extraordinary items  (5,283) (1,139)
Net increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation reserve 27 2,155 1,681

Total changes in equity other than those resulting from transactions with 
WA State Government as owners  (3,128) 542
    
(a) Administration expenses are included in supplies and services.    
The Statement of Financial Performance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 
Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2005 
 Note 2004/05 2003/04
    $000 $000
Current Assets    
Cash assets 28 (a) 4,111 6,062
Restricted cash assets 18, 28 (a) 426 1,396
Receivables 19 2,038 1,968
Amounts receivable for services 21 726 166
Other assets 20 81 47
Total Current Assets  7,382 9,639
    
Non-Current Assets    
Amounts receivable for services 21 1,420 1,065
Property, plant, equipment and vehicles 22 32,456 30,078
Works of Art 23 184 185
Total Non-Current Assets  34,060 31,328

TOTAL ASSETS  41,442 40,967
    
Current Liabilities    
Payables 24 17,589 16,904
Provisions 25 (a) 4,475 3,900
Other liabilities 26 39 1,532
Total Current Liabilities  22,103 22,336
      
Non-Current Liabilities    
Provisions 25 (b) 3,603 2,974
Total Non-Current Liabilities  3,603 2,974

Total Liabilities  25,706 25,310
    
Equity 27   
Contributed equity  16,529 13,320
Reserves  5,356 3,201
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency)  (6,147) (864)

Total Equity  15,738 15,657

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  41,444 40,967
    
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 
Statement of Cash Flows 
for period ending 30 June 2005 
 Note 2004/05 2003/04
    $000 $000
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT    
Service appropriation  101,953 98,522
Capital contributions (i)  18,361 19,056
Holding account drawdowns  9,491 8,774
Net cash provided by State Government  129,805 126,352
    
Utilised as follows:    
    
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Payments    
Employee costs  (38,411) (34,526)
Supplies and services  (2,487) (2,096)
Accommodation  (938) (715)
Grants and subsidies  (18,845) (15,162)
Capital user charge  (33,578) (30,701)
Appropriations to agencies  (38,553) (32,484)
GST payments on purchases  (2,412) (2,515)
Other payments  0 (3)
    
Receipts    
Sale of goods and services  5 34
User charges and fees  422 220
Commonwealth grants and contributions  44 207
GST receipts on sales  71 37
GST receipts from taxation authority  2,302 2,321
Other receipts  587 138

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 28 (b) (131,793) (115,245)
    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Purchase of non-current physical assets  (933) (8,059)

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  (933) (8,059)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held  (2,921) 3,048
Cash assets at the beginning of the financial year  7,458 4,400
Cash assets transferred from other sources  0 10

CASH ASSETS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 28 (a) 4,537 7,458
    
The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes  
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DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 
OUTPUT SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES AND REVENUES 
FINAL SPLIT TO OUTPUTS                 
for the year ended 30 June 2005 

Art Gallery 
Services 

Library, Archival 
and Information 

Services 
Museum 
Services 

Arts Industry 
Support 

Recordkeeping 
and Archival 

Services 

Screen 
Production 

Industry Support 

Venue 
Management 

Services Total 
 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
COST OF SERVICES                                
Expenses from ordinary activities                                
Employee expenses 4,357 4,120 13,299 12,082 12,993 11,684 2,590 2,166 1,549 1,340 941 771 3,407 3,029 39,136 35,192 
Supplies and services 311 162 601 312 415 216 703 707 219 112 62 32 311 162 2,622 1,703 
Depreciation expense 102 80 196 155 135 107 102 88 80 45 20 15 102 80 737 570 
Administration expenses  65   125   87   150   41   13   65   546 
Accommodation expenses 125 103 242 199 167 137 199 169 27 28 25 21 125 103 910 760 
Grants, subsidies and sponsorship 291 15 562 31 388 20 17,754 17,464 58 6 58 3 291 15 19,402 17,554 
Capital User Charge 11,801 10,261 10,824 10,329 7,966 7,557 168 122 114 70 110 45 2,595 2,317 33,578 30,701 
Appropriation transferred 3,813 3,633 14,048 14,437 5,531 5,873 245 255     2,235 2,350 1,612 1,797 27,484 28,345 
Net revaluation decrement                                
Refund of previous years' revenue 6 (52) 11 (10) 8 591 6 (57) 1 (4) 1 (4) 1 (26) 34 438 
Other expenses from ordinary activities   5   11   7   5   1   1   3   33 

Total cost of services 20,806 18,392 39,783 37,671 27,603 26,279 21,767 21,069 2,048 1,639 3,452 3,247 8,444 7,545 123,903 115,842 
                                
Revenues from ordinary activities                               
User charges and fees  70 53 134 102 93 70 71 71 112 73 14 11 69 51 563 431 
Sale of Goods              4 40         4 40 
Grants and Subsidies  3 1 6  4 19 181   7       3 20 204 
Other revenues from ordinary activities 70 23 120 53 183 38 71 29 150 23 13 4 55 11 662 181 

Total revenues from ordinary activities 140 79 255 161 276 112 161 281 266 143 27 15 124 65 1,249 856 
                                
NET COST OF SERVICES 20,666 18,313 39,528 37,510 27,327 26,167 21,606 20,788 1,782 1,496 3,425 3,232 8,320 7,480 122,654 114,986 
                                
REVENUES FROM STATE GOVERNMENT                               
Output Appropriation 19,471 18,478 37,937 37,498 25,467 25,324 20,961 19,772 1,481 1,445 3,261 3,206 7,775 7,405 116,353 113,128 
Liability assumed by the Treasurer 126   244   168   126   25   25   127   841   
Initial recognition of assets not previously recognised  2   3   2   2   611       2  622 
Assets assumed / (transferred)  6   12   8   6   1   1   6  40 
Resources received free of charge 26 9 50 17 35 11 26 9 5 2 7   26 9 175 57 

Total revenues from State Government 19,623 18,495 38,231 37,530 25,670 25,345 21,113 19,789 1,511 2,059 3,293 3,207 7,928 7,422 117,369 113,847 

Change in net assets  (1,043) 182 (1,297) 20 (1,657) (822) (493) (999) (271) 563 (132) (25) (392) (58) (5,285) (1,139) 

The Output Schedule of Expenses and Revenues should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FUND APPROPRIATIONS & REVENUE ESTIMATES 
for the year ended 30 June 2005 
   2005 2005 2005 2005 2004  
   Estimate Actual Variation Actual Actual Variation 
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
DELIVERY OF SERVICES       
Item 93 Net amount appropriated to deliver services 81,111 81,029 (82) 81,029 77,308 3,721 
Item 94 Art Gallery of Western Australia 3,412 3,813 401 3,813 3,633 180 
Item 95 Library Board of Western Australia 14,006 14,048 42 14,048 14,437 (389) 
Item 96 Perth Theatre Trust 1,633 1,612 (21) 1,612 1,797 (185) 
Item 97 Western Australian Museum 5,434 5,531 97 5,531 5,873 (342) 
    
Amount Authorised by Other Statutes:       
 - Lotteries Commission Act 1990 9,520 9,764 244 9,764 9,532 232 
 - Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 558 558 0 558 548 10 
    
Total appropriations provided to deliver 
services 115,674 116,355 681 116,355 113,128 3,227 

CAPITAL       
Item 154 Capital Contribution 6,720 3,215 (3,505) 3,215 9,430 (6,215) 
Item 155 Art Gallery of Western Australia 848 6,386 5,538 6,386 837 5,549 
Item 156 Library Board of Western Australia 4,389 4,389 0 4,389 2,573 1,816 
Item 157 Perth Theatre Trust 487 487 0 487 383 104 
Item 158 Western Australian Museum 164 3,884 3,720 3,884 5,833 (1,949) 
    
   12,608 18,361 5,753 18,361 19,056 (695) 

GRAND TOTAL 128,282 134,716 6,434 134,716 132,184 2,532 

Details of Expenses by Service       
Art Gallery Services 18,747 19,471 724 19,471 18,478 993 
Library and Information Services 37,311 37,937 626 37,937 37,498 439 
Museum Services 25,400 25,467 67 25,467 25,324 143 
Arts Industry Support 22,039 20,961 (1,078) 20,961 19,772 1,189 
Screen Production Industry Support 3,201 3,261 60 3,261 3,206 55 
Venue Management Services 7,490 7,775 285 7,775 7,405 370 
Recordkeeping and Archival Services 1,486 1,481 (5) 1,481 1,445 36 
Total appropriations provided to deliver 
services 115,674 116,353 679 116,353 113,128 3,225 

Capital Expenditure       
Purchase of non-current physical assets 12,608 18,361 5,753 18,361 19,056 (695) 
Capital Contribution (appropriation) 12,608 18,361 5,753 18,361 19,056 (695) 

DETAILS OF REVENUE ESTIMATES       
Revenues 21,992 29,840 7,848 29,840 9,532 20,308 
Total Revenue Estimates 21,992 29,840 7,848 29,840 9,532 20,308 

(i) Adjustments are related to movements in cash balances and other accrual items such as receivables, payables and 
superannuation. 
    
The Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriations, Variances to Budget and Actual should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 
 
This Summary provides the basis for the Explanatory Statement information requirements of TI 945, which are set out in Note 32 
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1 Departmental mission and funding

2 Significant accounting policies

General Statement

Basis of accounting

a) Service Appropriation

b) Contributed Equity
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The Department’s mission is to provide leadership, support and services to ensure that current and future Western Australians are
informed and have access to a diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences.

The Department is predominantly funded by Parliamentary appropriations. The financial statements encompass all funds through
which the Department controls resources to carry on its functions.

In the process of reporting on the Department as a single entity, all intra-entity transactions and balances have been eliminated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AAS 29 'Financial Reporting by
Government Departments'. 

The statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, except for certain
assets and liabilities, which, as noted are measured at fair value.

Administered assets and liabilities, expenses and revenues are not integral to the Department in carrying out its functions and are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, forming part of the general purpose financial report of the Department. The
administered items are disclosed on the same basis as is described above for the financial statements of the Department. The
administered assets and liabilities, expenses and revenues are those which the Government requires the Department to administer
on its behalf. The assets do not render any service potential or future economic benefits to the Department, the liabilities do not
require the future sacrifice of service potential or future economic benefits of the Department, and the expenses and revenues are
not attributable to the Department.

Service Appropriations are recognised as revenue in the period in which the Department gains control of the appropriated funds.
The Department gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited into the Department’s bank account or
credited to the holding account held at the Department of Treasury and Finance.
    
The Department receives funding from the Lotteries Commission under the provisions of Section 22 of the Lotteries Commission
Act (1990). This provides for receipts based on five per cent of the net lotteries and games subscriptions received by the Lotteries
Commission. Accordingly, funds are received in arrears, and at 30 June the portion relating to lotteries turnover for June remained
outstanding. This amount is recognised as an asset in the Statement of Financial Position, and as Appropriations in the Statement
of Financial Performance.

Under UIG 38 “Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities” transfers in the nature of equity
contributions must be designated by the Government (owners) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before
such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions in the financial statements. Capital contributions (appropriations) have
been designated as contributions by owners and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity in the Statement of Financial
Position.  Capital appropriations which are repayable to the Treasurer are recognised as liabilities.

As the administered assets and liabilities, expenses and revenues are not recognised in the principal financial statements of the
Department, the disclosure requirements of Australian Accounting Standard AAS 33, Presentation and Disclosure of Financial
Instruments, are not applied to administered transactions.

The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements. Unless otherwise stated these
policies are consistent with those adopted in the previous year.

The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standards, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board, and Urgent Issues Group (UIG) Consensus Views as applied by the Treasurer's Instructions. Several of these are modified
by the Treasurer's Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording. The Financial Administration and Audit Act and
the Treasurer's Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over
Accounting Standards, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board, and UIG Consensus Views. The modifications are intended to fulfil the requirements of general application to the
public sector together with the need for greater disclosure and also to satisfy accountability requirements.  

If any such modification has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and where
practicable, the resulting financial effect, are disclosed in individual notes to these financial statements.
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c) Net Appropriation Determination

d) Grants and Other Contributions

e) Revenue Recognition

f) Acquisition of Assets

g) Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

h) Revaluation of Land, Buildings and Infrastructure

i) Leases

j) Cash

k) Accrued Salaries

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets and the rendering of services is recognised when the Department has
passed control of the goods or other assets or delivery of the service to the customer.

The cost method of accounting is used for all acquisition of assets. Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given up or
liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition plus incidental costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Assets costing less than $1,000 are expensed in the year of acquisition (other than where they form part of a group of similar items
which are significant in total).

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their useful lives in a manner that reflects the
consumption of their future economic benefits.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis, using rates which are reviewed annually. Expected useful lives of each class of
depreciable assets are:

Buildings/Improvements                       40 years
Plant and equipment                            4 to 10 years
Computer hardware and software        4 years

Works of art controlled by the Department are classified as heritage assets. They are anticipated to have very long and
indeterminate useful lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period. As
such, no amount for depreciation has been recognised in respect of them.

The Department has a policy of valuing land, buildings and infrastructure at fair value. The annual revaluations of the Department's
land and buildings undertaken by the Department of Land Information (Valuation Services) are recognised in the financial
statements. (see note 22).

Pursuant to Section 23A of the Financial Administration and Audit Act, the net appropriation determination by the Treasurer
provides for retention of the following moneys received by the Department:
•      proceeds from fees and charges; 
•      Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions; and
•      other Departmental revenue.

In accordance with the determination, the Department retained $1.194m in 2005 ($0.856m in 2004).

Retained revenues may only be applied to the services specified in the 2004-2005 Budget Statements.

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions are recognised as revenue when the Department obtains control over
the assets comprising the contributions.  Control is normally obtained upon their receipt.

Contributions are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably
determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.

The Department has entered into a number of operating lease arrangements for the rent of the office building and motor vehicles
where the lessor effectively retains all of the risks and benefits incident to ownership of the items held under the operating leases.
Rent for office accommodation is paid to the Department of Housing and Works and motor vehicles to State Fleet through the
Department of Treasury and Finance. Equal instalments of the lease payments are charged to the Statement of Financial
Performance over the lease term, as this is representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash assets and restricted cash assets.

The accrued salaries suspense account (refer note 18) consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account over a period of
10 financial years to largely meet the additional cash outflow in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur in that year instead of
the normal 26. No interest is received on this account.

Accrued salaries (note 26) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last pay
period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a few days of
the financial year end. The Department considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to the net fair value.
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l) Receivables

m) Licenses

n) Software

o) Website costs

p) Payables

q) Employee benefits
Annual  leave

Superannuation

1)

2)

Staff may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefits pension scheme now closed to new members, or to the Gold State
Superannuation Scheme, a defined benefit lump sum scheme now also closed to new members. All staff who do not contribute to
either of these schemes become non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme, an accumulation fund. The
Department contributes to this accumulation fund in compliance with the Commonwealth Government's Superannuation Guarantee
(Administration) Act 1992.  All of these schemes are administered by the Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB).

The superannuation expense comprises the following elements:

The superannuation expense, with exception of the WA Museum, does not include payment of pensions to retirees, as this does not
constitute part of the cost of services provided by the Department in the current year.

A revenue “Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer” equivalent to (i) is recognised under Revenues from Government in the Statement
of Financial Performance as the unfunded liabilities is assumed by the Treasurer. The GESB makes the benefit payments and is
recouped by the Treasurer.

The Department is funded for employer contributions in respect of the Gold State Superannuation Scheme and the West State
Superannuation Scheme. These contributions were paid to the GESB during the year. The GESB subsequently paid the employer
contributions in respect of the Gold State Superannuation Scheme to the Consolidated Fund.

The liabilities for superannuation changes under the Gold State Superannuation Scheme and West State Superannuation Scheme
are extinguished by payment of the employer contributions to the GESB.

change in the unfunded employer's liability in respect of current employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and
current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme: and

employer contributions paid to Gold State Superannuation Scheme and the West State Superannuation Scheme.

The liability for long service leave expected to be settled within twelve months of the reporting date is recognised in the provisions
for employee benefits and is measured at the nominal amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. The liability for long
service leave expected to be settled more than twelve months from the reporting date is recognised in the provisions for employee
benefits and is measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is given, when assessing expected future payments, to expected future wage
and salary levels including relevant on costs, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments
are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash flows.

Costs in relation to web sites controlled by the Department are charged as expenses in the period in which they are incurred unless
they relate to the acquisition of an asset, in which case they are capitalised and amortised over the period of expected benefit.
Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the planning phase of a web site, and ongoing costs of maintenance during
the operating phase are considered to be expenses. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a web site, to the extent that they
represent probable future economic benefits controlled by the Department that can be reliably measured, are capitalised as an
asset and amortised over the period of the expected benefits which vary from three to five years.

This benefit is recognised at the reporting date in respect to employees' services up to that date and is measured at the nominal
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Long service leave

Receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable, as they are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of
recognition.

Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are written off. A
provision for doubtful debts is raised where some doubt as to collection exists.

Payables, including accruals not yet billed, are recognised when the Department becomes obliged to make future payments as a
result of a purchase of assets or services. Payables are generally settled within 30 days.

Licences held by the Department are valued at cost, and they are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
life.

Significant costs associated with the acquisition or development of computer software are capitalised and amortised on a straight
line basis over the periods of the expected benefit, which is 4 years.

97



2004-2005 ANNUAL REPORT

Employee benefit on-costs

r) Resources Received Free of Charge or For Nominal Value

s) Comparative Figures

t) Rounding of amounts

3 Services of the Department

2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

4 Employee expenses
Wages and salaries 33,336 31,633
Superannuation 4,182 2,976
Worker's compensation premium 24 20
Employee entitlements 1,191 284
Other related expenses (i) 403 279

39,136 35,192

Service 1: Art Gallery Services.
Description: Delivery of the State Art Collection and access to art gallery services and programs through visual arts advocacy,
collection development, facilities and services. Services ensure that primary access to art, heritage and ideas locally, regionally
and internationally are preserved and displayed for future generations.

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to the nearest dollar.

Information about the Department’s services is set out in the Schedule of Expenses and Revenues by Service.

The seven key services of the Department are:

Outcome:
A community that is informed of, and has access to, a diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural
experiences.

Resources received free of charge or for nominal value which can be reliably measured are recognised as revenues and as assets
or expenses as appropriate at fair value.

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified so as to be comparable with the figures presented in the current financial
year.

Employee benefit on-costs, are recognised and included in employee benefit liabilities and costs when the employee benefits to
which they relate are recognised as liabilities and expenses.  (See notes 4 and 25).

Service 7: Recordkeeping and Archival Services.
Description: Delivery of recordkeeping services to State and Local government agencies, improving the quality of current record
management systems and provision of access to State Archives Collections by government agencies and the community.

Service 6: Venue Management Services.
Description: Management and promotion of performing arts venues.

Service 2: Library and Information Services.
Description: Delivery of library and information services through the Internet, the Alexander Library Building and the Public Library
system. Support Local Authorities and associated bodies with leadership, resources, information and other services. Services
ensure that Western Australia’s documentary heritage is collected, organised and preserved for access by future generations.

Service 3: Museum Services.
Description: Delivery and promotion of museum services through collection development and management, research, education
and visitor services.

Service 5: Screen Production Industry Support.
Description: Delivery of strategic support and funding to advance the development of the screen production industry in Western
Australia.

Service 4: Arts Industry Support.
Description: Development, funding and promotion of the arts industry.

(i) these employee expenses include superannuation, workers compensation premiums and other
employment on-costs associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability. The related on-
costs liability is included in employee benefit liabilities at Note 25.

98



2004-2005 ANNUAL REPORT

2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

5 Supplies and services
Advertising 28 41
Audit Fees 88 26
Catering 52 59
Communications 225 194
Computing supplies 24 39
Consultants and contractors 498 509
Consumables 84 116
Equipment purchases 29 24
Exhibition fees 7 127
Graphic Design 42 72
Insurance 136 120
Lease - equipment and vehicles 88 75
Legal fees 21 18
Maintenance - plant and equipment 149 161
Photographic and microfilm supplies 52 13
Printing 111 103
Property expenses 124 131
Records Management 22 12
Software licenses 104 11
Temporary staff services 322 112
Travel 108 104
Other 308 182

2,622 2,249
Includes Administration expenses which were previously a separate line item.

6 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Buildings 457 420
Leasehold improvements 21 10
Plant, equipment, computer hardware and software 258 140

736 570

7 Accommodation expenses
Cleaning 9 20
Electricity, gas and water 172 17
Facilities management and other accommodation 169 141
Lease rentals 267 261
Rates 10 62
Repairs and maintenance 283 259

910 760

8 Grants and subsidies
Recurrent

Arts Agency and Panels 17,464 17,449
Subiaco Theatre project- contribution to City of Subiaco 1,300 0
Other 639 105

19,403 17,554

9 Capital user charge 33,578 30,701

A capital user charge rate of 8% has been set by the Government for 2004/05 and represents the
opportunity cost of capital invested in the net assets of the Departments and the culture and art
portfolio agencies, which are used in the provision of services. The charge is calculated on the net
assets adjusted to take account of exempt assets.  Payments are made to the Department of Treasury 
and Finance on a quarterly basis.
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2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

10 Appropriations to agencies
Art Gallery of WA 3,813 3,633
Library Board of WA 14,048 14,437
Perth Theatre Trust 1,612 1,797
Screen West (Inc) 2,235 2,350
Swan Bells Foundation 245 255
Western Australian Museum 5,531 5,873

27,484 28,345

11 Refund of prior years' revenue 34 438

12 Other expenses from ordinary activities
Carrying amount of non-current assets disposed of 0 33

13 User charges and fees
Rent 265 208
Recoup of costs 112 55
Other 186 168

563 431

14 Sale of Goods
Sales 4 40

15 Commonwealth grants and contributions
Commonwealth grants 20 204

16 Other revenues from non-operating activities
Bequests 0 6
Recoup of prior year expenses 178 31
Recoups of salaries and worker's compensation costs 422 110
Sponsorship 24 3
Other 38 31

662 181

17 Revenues from State Government
Appropriation revenue received during the year:
Service appropriations (i) 116,355 113,128

116,355 113,128

The following liabilities have been assumed by the Treasurer during the financial year:
 - Superannuation (ii) 841 0

841 0

0 622
Total assets assumed/(transferred) 0 622

Initial recognition of assets not previously recognised in the financial statements (iv)
0 40

Total assets not previously recognised 0 40

Resources received free of charge (v)
Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies:
  Department of Education and Training - staff secondments 80 57
  Department of Treasury and Finance - integrated procurement services 81 0
  State Solicitor's Office - legal services 14 0

175 57

117,371 113,847

The following assets have been assumed from/(transferred to) other state 
government agencies during the financial year: (iii)

For 2003/04, the liability assumed by the Treasurer in relation to notional superannuation expense
(refer note 17 (II) ) decreased as a result of the retirement and transfer of relevant employees. A
notional expense was recognised in 2003/04 to reflect the reversal of revenue for ‘Liabilities assumed
by the Treasurer’ recognised in prior years.

 - plant and equipment

 - Works of art

100



2004-2005 ANNUAL REPORT

2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

18 Restricted cash assets
Current

Accrued salaries suspense account (i) 0 1,060
Commonwealth funds - service delivery arrangement (ii) 80 24
Arts Lotteries Trust Account (iii) 346 312

426 1,396

19 Receivables
Current
Amount receivable from the Lotteries Commission 1,011 1,098
Trade Debtors 538 324
Provision for Doubtful Debts (23) (23)
GST receivable 512 569

2,038 1,968

20 Other assets
Prepayments 81 47

21 Amounts receivable for services
Current 726 166
Non-current 1,420 1,065
Total amounts receivable for services 2,146 1,231

(iii) The Department of Culture and the Arts holds funds in Trust that are only to be used for the
purpose as detailed in the Trust Statement: "payments are made in such proportion and among such
bodies engaged in the conduct of cultural activities, and persons engaged in cultural activities in the
State, as the Minister for the Arts thinks fit " (refer to note 38).

(iii) From 1 July 2002 non-discretionary non-reciprocal transfers of net assets (ie. Restructuring or
administrative arrangements) have been classified as Contributions by Owners (COBs) under TI 955
and are taken directly to equity. Discretionary transfers between State Government agencies are
reported as Assets assumes/(transferred) under revenues from state Government.

(i) Amount held in suspense account is only to be used for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a
financial year that occurs every 11 years. There was a 27th pay period in 2004-05.

(v) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal consideration, the
Department recognises revenues (except where the contributions of assets or services are in the
nature of contributions by owners in which case the Department shall make a direct adjustment to
equity) equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be
reliably determined and which would have been purchased if not donated, and those fair values shall
be recognised as assets or expenses, as applicable.

(ii) The assumption of the superannuation liability by the Treasurer is only a notional revenue to offset
the notional superannuation expense reported in respect of current employees who are members of
the pension scheme and current employees who have a transfer benefit entitlement under the Gold
State scheme.

(i) Output appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the full cost of outputs delivered. The
appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The receivable (holding
account) comprises the depreciation expense for the year and any agreed increase in leave liability
during the year.

(iv) Where assets have been discovered or have not been previously recognised in the financial
statements, the Department recognises the corresponding credit as revenue.

(ii) The Department of Culture and the Arts and the Commonwealth Government have a Service
Delivery Arrangement for the provision of services to the Indian Ocean Territories (Christmas and
Cocos (Keeling) Islands). The Commonwealth Government recoups the Department the costs
associated with these services (refer to note 40).

This asset represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in that it can
only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.
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2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

22 Property, plant, equipment and vehicles
Freehold Land
At fair value (i) 10,210 9,740

10,210 9,740
Buildings
At fair value (i) 19,348 18,337
At cost 1,093 209
Works in progress 0 639
Accumulated depreciation (6) 0

20,435 19,185
Leasehold improvements
     At cost 1,195 956
     Accumulated amortisation (928) (907)

267 49
Plant, equipment, computer hardware and software
     At cost 1,469 1,016
     Accumulated depreciation (731) (497)

738 519
Furniture and fittings
     At cost 17 15
     Accumulated amortisation (6) (3)

11 12
Collections
At valuation 795 573

795 573

32,456 30,078

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
2005
Carrying amount at start of year 9,740 19,185 49 519 12 573 30,078
Additions 245 239 476 2 962
Disposals (23) (23)
Revaluations 1,011 1,011
Increments/(Decrements) 470 222 692
Depreciation and amortisation 0 (6) (21) (234) (3) 0 (264)
Carrying amount at end of year 10,210 20,435 267 738 11 795 32,456

23 Works of Art
     At fair value 145 145
     At cost 39 40

184 185

The revaluation of freehold land and buildings to fair value was performed in 2002 in accordance with
an independent valuation by the Valuer General's Office as a result of the initial application of AASB
1041 (AAS 38).

Land Buildings

Leasehold 
improvement

s

Plant, 
equipment, 
computer 

hardware & 
software Collections Total

Furniture 
and Fittings

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of plant, equipment and leasehold improvements at the
beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out below.

(i) The revaluation of land and buildings was performed during the year ended 30 June 2005 in
accordance with an independent valuation by the Valuer General's Office (VGO). Fair value of land
has been determined on the basis of current use or current market buying values as appropriate. The
fair value of buildings has been determined by reference to the market values or current depreciated
replacement costs where the buildings are specialised and no market evidence of value is available.
The valuations were made in accordance with a regular policy of annual revaluation.
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2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

24 Payables
Trade payables 150 182
Grants payable 17,439 16,722

17,589 16,904

Commitments 10,566 12,693

25 Provisions
(a) Current:

Annual leave 2,417 2,060
Long service leave 1,846 1,650
Other employee benefits (i) 212 190

4,475 3,900
(b) Non-current:

Long service leave 3,232 2,667
Other employee benefits (i) 371 307

3,603 2,974

Employee Benefits Liability

Current 4,475 3,900
3,603 2,974
8,078 6,874

26 Other liabilities
2 1,088

Accrued back pay 0 408
Income received in advance 36 36
Unclaimed monies 1 0

39 1,532

27 Equity

Contributed equity
Opening balance 13,320 3,907

3,209 9,413
Closing balance 16,529 13,320

Reserves
Asset revaluation reserve (i)
Opening balance 3,201 1,520

Land 470 100
1,463 1,581

222 0
Closing balance 5,356 3,201
Collections
Buildings

(i) The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of
non-current assets, as described in accounting policy note 2(h).

The Department considers the carrying amount of employee benefits to approximate their net fair
value.

(i) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment
on-costs including superannuation and workers compensation premiums. The liability for such on-
costs is included here. The associated expense is included under Other related expenses (under
Employee expenses) at Note 4.

Commitments relate to triennially funded arts agencies where contracts have been let at 30 June.
These have not been brought to account as liabilities as they do not meet the recognition criteria
AAS29.

The aggregate employee benefits liability recognised and included in the financial statements is as 
follows:

Provision for employee benefits:

Non-current

Capital contributions (i)

Grants payable is recognised where contracts have been entered into with Departmental clients prior
to June 30, but not paid.

Net revaluation increments/(decrements):

Accrued salaries - 0 days (2004 - 9 days)

Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Department. The Government holds
the equity interest in the Department on behalf of the community. The asset revaluation reserve
represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

(i) Capital Contributions have been designated as contributions by owners and are credited directly to
equity in the Statement of Financial Position.
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2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

Accumulated surplus/(deficiency)
Opening balance (864) 275
Change in net assets (5,283) (1,139)
Closing balance (6,147) (864)

28
(a) Reconciliation of cash

Cash assets 4,111 6,062
Restricted cash assets (refer to note 18) 426 1,396

4,537 7,458

(b)

Net cost of services (122,654) (114,987)
Non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 736 570
Doubtful debts expense 0 (3)
Superannuation expense 841 0
Resources received free of charge 175 57
Appropriation transferred (11,069) (4,139)
Net revaluation decrement 0 0
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0 10

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (70) 7
Other current assets (34) 9

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables 685 2,250
Capital amount included in payables (17) 27
Current provisions 575 118
Accrued salaries 0 282
Non-current provisions 629 140
Other Current Liabilities (1,493) 408

Net GST receipts/(payments) (i) (40) 0
Change in GST in receivables/payables (ii) (57) 6

Net cash used in operating activities (131,793) (115,245)

29 Resources provided free of charge

Art Gallery of WA 14,894 13,201
Library and Information Services of WA 21,164 20,700
Perth Theatre Trust 4,752 4,353
ScreenWest 800 609
Western Australian Museum 18,509 18,460

60,119 57,323

During the year the following resources were provided to other agencies free of charge. The amounts
shown represent the payment of salaries, capital user charge and superannuation paid by the
Department on behalf of the following agencies:

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities

(ii) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables
(iii) Note that ATO receivable/payable in respect of GST and receivable/payable in respect of
sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as they are not reconciling items.

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the
related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

(i) This is the GST paid/received, ie. cash transactions
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2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

30 Commitments for expenditure

Within one year 425 252
Later than one year and not later than five years 238 16

663 268
Representing:
   Cancellable operating leases 107 67
   Non-cancellable operating leases 556 201

663 268
Non cancellable operating lease commitments
   Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:

Within one year 351 201
Later than one year and not later than five years 205 0

556 201

31 Events occurring after reporting date

32 Explanatory Statements

2005 2004 Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000

Total appropriation provided to deliver services for the year 117,371 113,847 3,524
Total revenues from ordinary activities 1,249 856 393

Total appropriation provided to deliver services for the year

2005 2004 Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000

Art Gallery Services 19,471 18,478 993
Library and Information Services 37,937 37,498 439
Museum Services 25,467 25,324 143
Arts Industry Support 20,961 19,772 1,189
Screen Production Industry Support 3,261 3,206 55
Venue Management Services 7,775 7,405 370
Recordkeeping and Archival Services 1,481 1,445 36

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities
are payable:

The increased appropriation has resulted mainly from an increased Capital User Charge (+$2.877m).

Increased revenues from ordinary activities have resulted mainly from increased recoups of salaries for
seconded staff (+$176k) and recoups of expenses relating to the prior year (+$148k).

Service Expenditure

i) Significant variances between estimates and actual - total appropriation to deliver services:

ii) Significant variances between actual and prior year actual - total appropriation to deliver services:

The property lease is a non-cancellable lease with a five year term, with rent payable monthly in
advance. Contingent rental provisions within the lease agreement require that minimum lease
payments shall be increased by the lower of CPI or 4% per annum. An option exists to renew the
lease at the end of the five year term for an additional term of five years.

These lease commitments are all inclusive of GST.

Total revenue

The Department is unaware of any event occurring after reporting date that would materially affect the
financial statements.

There was no significant variance in the total appropriation or in service expenditures.

The Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriations and Revenue Estimates discloses appropriations
and other statutes expenditure estimates, the actual expenditures made and revenue estimates and
payments into the Consolidated Fund.  Appropriations are now on an accrual basis.

The following explanations are provided in accordance with Treasurer's Instruction 945. Significant
variations are considered to be those greater than 10% or $1,000,000.
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2005 2005
Estimate Actual Variation

$'000 $'000 $'000

Capital Contribution 12,608 18,361 5,753

2005 2004 Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000

Capital Contribution 18,361 19,056 695

33 Financial instruments

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

Non 
interest 
bearing Total

Non 
interest 
bearing Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash resources 4,111 4,111 6,062 6,062
Restricted cash resources 426 426 1,396 1,396
Accounts receivable 2,038 2,038 1,968 1,968

6,575 6,575 9,426 9,426

Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable 150 150 182 182
Provisions 8,078 8,078 6,874 6,874
Grants payable 17,439 17,439 16,722 16,722
Total financial liabilities 25,667 25,667 23,778 23,778

Net Financial Assets (Liabilities) (19,092) (19,092) (14,352) (14,352)

The following table details the Department's exposure to interest rate risk as at the reporting
date:

There was no significant variance in Capital Contribution between 2003/04 and 2004/05.

iv) Significant variances between actual and prior year actual - Capital Contribution:

The significant variance between estimate and actual Capital Contribution is due to supplementary funding
being provided during the year for the WA Art Gallery to repay borrowings principal ($5.538m) and for the
Museum to undertake specialist fit out of the Kew Street premises for housing the WA Museum collections
until suitable alternate accommodations are constructed ($3.720m). This was offset by a reduction in Capital
Contribution drawn down (-$3.505m) primarily because of the deferral until 2005/06 of the Broome Cultural
Centre project.

iii) Significant variances between estimate and actual - Capital Contribution:

An increase to the Capital User Charge from 2003/04 by $2.877m is the single most significant change
between years. This amount is attributed across the services delivered by the portfolio agencies of the
Department, and is reflected in the variances indicated between 2004/05 actual results and those of 2003/04.

2005 2004
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(b) Credit risk exposure

(c) Net fair value of financial instruments

34 Remuneration of senior officers

Remuneration

2005 2004
1 - 10,000 0 1

30,001 - 40,000 0 2
50,001 - 60,000 1 1
60,001 - 70,000 2 0
80,001 - 90,000 0 1

90,001 - 100,000 0 4
100,001 - 110,000 0 1
110,001 - 120,000 0 1
120,001 - 130,000 0 1
200,001 - 210,000 0 1
230,001 - 240,000 1 0

$'000 $'000
Total remuneration of senior officers is: 366 1,149

2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

35 Remuneration of Auditor

Remuneration to the Auditor General for the financial year is as follows:

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators 65 0

36 Related Bodies

The Department has no related bodies.

The Office of the Auditor General commenced charging a fee for auditing services from 2003/04. The
payment of the fee is due in the year after the audit has been conducted, therefore the remuneration
indicated in this note refers to the fee for auditing the 2003/04 financial statements. It is inclusive of
GST. Prior to 2003/04, the notional fee for auditing services was included as Resources Received
Free of Charge.

The number of senior officers whose total of fees, salaries and other benefits received, or due and
receivable, for the financial year, who fall within the following bands is:

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the Office in
respect of senior officers.  No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.

In 2003/04, the Department included all officers holding positions in the band of Level 8 and above as
Senior Officers. As a result of restructuring effective from February 2005, the Department has three
Divisional Executive Directors as well as the Director General who constitute the Corporate Executive
and who are included as Senior Officers. These officers hold positions in the band of Class 1 and
above.

The Department has limited credit risk exposure. The carrying amount of financial assets
recorded in the financial statements, other than debt receivables, represents the Department’s
maximum exposure to credit risk. The majority of the Department’s debtors are amounts owing
by other government agencies. These debts are guaranteed and therefore no credit risk exists
in respect of these amounts.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial
statements are not materially different from their net fair values, determined in accordance with
the accounting policies disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.
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37 Affiliated Bodies

2005 2004
Affiliated Body $ $
Art on the move 326,348
Artist's Foundation of WA 333,260
Artsource 363,587
Australian Dance Council 140,000
Community Arts Network 485,525 452,322
Country Arts WA 1,388,707
Festival Fringe Society 172,080
Perth Theatre Company 390,000
PICA 470,348 533,444
WA Music Industry Association 347,757

3,174,515 2,228,863

2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

38 Trust Accounts

Private Trust Account
Arts Lotteries Trust Account

Opening balance at 1 July 312 182

Receipts

     Refunds of Grants funding under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 9,764 9,532

Payments

     Grants and Projects for cultural activities 9,730 9,402

Closing balance 346 312

The closing balance forms part of the Department's bank account held at the Commonwealth Bank.

An affiliated body is a body which receives more than half its funding and resources from a
department but is not subject to operational control by that department.

The Department provides grants to non-government affiliated bodies for administrative support. In
accordance with Treasurer's Instruction 951, the details of financial assistance provided to the non-
government affiliated bodies are shown in the table below. A full list showing details of all grants
provided to non-government bodies has been included in the grants lists attached to and forming part
of the annual report.

This Trust Account was established to account for funds received from the Lotteries Commission
pursuant to sections 22(2)(d) of the Lotteries Commission Act 1990. Payments are made in such
proportion and among such bodies engaged in the conduct of cultural activities, and persons engaged
in cultural activities in the State, as the Minister for the Arts thinks fit.
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2004/05 2003/04
$'000 $'000

39 Supplementary information

Write-Offs

The Accountable Officer 0 0
The Minister 0 17

0 17

The Accountable Officer 0 10
The Minister 0 0

0 10

Losses through theft, defaults and other causes 0 0
0 0

There were no gifts of public property provided by the Department.

40 Service Delivery Arrangement - Commonwealth Grant

Opening balance of funds 24 0

Receipts

Recoups received from the Commonwealth Government 81 56

Payments

Cost of providing services 25 32

Balance on hand 80 24

41 Impact of Adopting Australian Equivalents to IFRS

Australia is adopting Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) for
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The Department of Culture and the Arts will
adopt these Standards for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2006.

AASB 1047 ‘Disclosing the Impacts of Adopting Australian Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards’ requires disclosure of any known or reliably estimable information about the
impacts on the financial statements had they been prepared using AIFRS’s.

The information provided below discloses the main areas impacted due to the effects of adopting
AIFRS. Management have determined the quantitative impacts using their best estimates available at
the time of preparing the 30 June 2005 financial statements. These amounts may change in
circumstances where the accounting standards and/or interpretations applicable to the first AIFRS
financial statements are amended or revised.

During the 2004/05 financial year nothing was written off the Department’s asset register (2003/04
$9,834): 

During the 2004/05 financial year nothing was written off by the Department as bad debts (2003/04
$16,644):

The Department of Culture and the Arts and the Commonwealth Government have a Service Delivery
Arrangement for the provision of services to the Indian Ocean Territories (Christmas and Cocos
(Keeling) Islands). The Commonwealth Government recoups the Department the costs associated
with these services, as detailed below:
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30 June 05 1 July 04
$000 $000

Total equity under previous AGAAP 15,738 15,657

Adjustment on transition to IFRS arising from changes to:

Property, plant and equipment (i) (149) (165)
Intangible assets (i) 149 165
Current provisions (LSL) (ii) (849) (927)
Non-current provisions (LSL) (ii) 849 927

Total equity under IFRS 15,738 15,657

(a) Reconciliation of total equity as presented under previous AGAAP to that under AIFRS:

No material impacts are expected from adopting AIFRS with respect to the Statement of Cash Flows.

(ii) AASB119 requires the calculation of Long Service Leave Liability to continue on a present value
basis, as per AASB1028. Therefore the total Long Service Leave provision will not change under
IFRS. However, the classification of the current and non-current portions of Long Service Leave has
changed. Under AASB1028, the current portion only includes the amount of Long Service Leave that
is unconditional at the reporting date, whereas under AASB119, the current portion is to also include
that amount of Long Service Leave that is expected to become unconditional within the 12 months
following the reporting date.

(i) AASB101 requires Intangible assets to be presented on the face of the balance sheet. Intangible
assets are currently included in Property, plant and equipment in the Statement of Financial Position.

(b) Reconciliation of surplus/(deficit) for the period as presented under previous AGAAP to that under
AIFRS:

(c)  Statement of Cash Flows

No material impacts are expected from adopting AIFRS with respect to the Surplus/Deficit reported in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

The adjustments are explained as follows:
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